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Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School - Entity ID 4497
School(s):
Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School-6142

Renewal Executive Summary
Sources of Evidence for this Document

Pursuant to A.R.S. 15-183.1, the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (Board) has
established a process for the renewal of a charter that is based on affirmative evidence in three
areas:

I. Success of the academic program, including academic achievement
Il.  Viability of the organization, including fiscal management and compliance
Ill. Adherence to the terms of the charter, including contract and legal compliance

Evaluation of the charter holder's success in these three areas is based on a variety of
information that will serve as sources of evidence in determining renewal of a charter. These
sources include, but are not limited to:

Pupil achievement data
Independent financial audits
Five-year interval summary reviews
Site visit reports

Monitoring reports

Application package for renewal

Profile

Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School operates one school serving grades K-5 with a
total FY2011 average daily membership (ADM) of 62.314. Additional information can be found
in the Renewal Summary Review.

Graphs displaying the academic achievement for the past five years, if available, are provided
on the next page. The 2011 data is missing from the graphs because the majority of the test
data (all grade levels except second grade and a couple of make-up tests) was invalidated by
the Department of Education when it confirmed that the tests were improperly administered.

ASBCS, November 21, 2011 Page 1
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I. Success of the Academic Program

The academic performance of the school operated by the charter holder did not meet or
demonstrate sufficient progress toward the Board’s level of adequate academic performance.
Therefore, the charter holder was required to submit a Performance Management Plan in the
academic section of the renewal application and to complete the Renewal Budget Plan.

A PMP narrative and templates were submitted on 09/28/2011.

A leadership team discussion took place on November 8, 2011 at Chester Newton Charter and
Montessori School. Members of the leadership team included Dr. Betty Chester, Director and
Charter Representative; Dr. Dowling Campbell, Co-Director; Loretta Donovan, principal; Mary
Redmon, business administrator; Keven Chester, administrator; David Schmittendorf, food
service manager; and Amy Darwin, grant administrator. The discussion was focused on the
recent change in principal, the new processes for collecting and evaluating data, and evidence
of the implementation of curriculum aligned to the state standards. The team was able to
provide evidence of work toward curriculum alignment and data discussions/meetings. It was
determined by the team that the work of the current administration is not accurately captured in
the PMP and that evidence of implementation, as currently stated in the plan, could be stronger.

Required submissions for the Academic Performance Section and the Renewal Budget Plan, as
well as the applicable evaluation instrument and checklist, are included in the charter holder’s
portfolio. The evaluation instrument completed by staff identifies whether the required
information provided included a Full Description, a Partial Description, or a Very Limited
Description. The checklist completed by staff identifies whether the required elements of the
Detailed Business Plan were addressed.

II. Viability of the Organization

The charter holder meets the standards specified in the Renewal Application Instructions.
Therefore, the charter holder was not required to submit the charter holder’s Financial
Sustainability portion of the Detailed Business Plan Section.

lll. Adherence to the Terms of the Charter

A. Compliance Matters Requiring Board or Other Agency Action®

Over the past six years, there were no items to report.

B. Other Compliance Matters?

In March 2008, ADE Exceptional Student Services notified the charter holder of partial
compliance issues in some areas with regard to specific regulations for Part B, Individuals with
Disabilities Education act (IDEA), and the Arizona Revised Statutes. The compliance issues
were reported by ADE as resolved in October 2008.

! For more information about the areas of compliance reviewed for this section, please see the “Renewal Guide”.
2 For more information about the areas of compliance reviewed for this section, please see the “Renewal Guide”.
ASBCS, November 21, 2011 Page 3





In April 2006, ADE Academic Achievement Division (ADE/AAD) identified noncompliance items
in the NCLB Programmatic Monitoring Cycle 2 Packet for 2005-06. The noncompliance items
were reported by ADE as resolved in June 2006.

C. Charter Holder's Organizational Membership

Because the organizational membership on file with the Board was not consistent with the
information on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission, the charter holder was required to
submit the charter holder’s Organizational Membership portion of the Detailed Business Plan
Section. Required submissions for the charter holder's Organizational Membership portion of
the Detailed Business Plan Section of the renewal application and the applicable checklist are
included in the charter holder’s portfolio.

Staff Recommendation

Renewal is based on consideration of academic, fiscal and contractual compliance of the
charter holder. In this case, there is a record of academic performance below the Board'’s level
of adequate academic performance, which has been addressed by the charter holder through
the inclusion of a performance management plan as part of the renewal application package
and can be incorporated in the charter contract. With that taken into consideration and based
upon the fiscal compliance and all information provided to the Board for consideration of this
renewal application package, | move to approve the request for charter renewal and grant a
renewal contract to Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School that incorporates the
performance management plan.

ASBCS, November 21, 2011 Page 4






Five-Year Interval Report

Welcome Laura Tucker | Logout

497 —
4]

Arizona State
Board for

s’ Charter Schools

1k

Dashboard Alerts Bulletin Board Charter Holder DMS Email Tasks Search Help Other

Five-Year Interval Report Back to reports list

ARI1ZONA STATE BoARD FOR CHARTER ScHoOLS
Renewal Summary Review

Interval Report Details Hide Section

Report Date: 10/12/2011 Report Type: Renewal

Charter Contract Information Hide Section
Charter Corporate Name: Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School
Charter CTDS: 13-87-53-000 Charter Entity ID: 4497
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 01/05/1998
Authorizer: ASBCS Contractual Days:
Number of Schools: 1 e Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School: 150
Charter Grade Configuration: K-5 Contract Expiration Date: 01/04/2013
FY Charter Opened: 1999 Charter Signed: 01/05/1998
Charter Granted: — Corp. Commission Status Charter Holder is in Good Standing
Corp. Commission File # 0826270-3 Corp. Type Non Profit
Corp. Commission Status Date 03/10/2011 Charter Enrollment Cap 160

Charter Contact Information

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2166 Website: —
Camp Verde, AZ 86322
Phone: 928-567-2363 Fax: 928-567-5374
Mission Statement: The Chester -Newton School's mission is to provide for youngsters in Camp Verde and surrounding areas a quality Montessori

educational program as an alternative to public school elementary education. Offering viable intellectual growth for all
students, involving parents in special student-related programs, the Montessori method meets each child's particular needs.

Charter Representatives: Name: Email: FCC Expiration Date:
1.) Dr. Betty Chester cnscms@cnsmontessori.org —
2.) Mr. Keven Chester Keven.Chester@cnsmontessori.org —
3.) Dr. Dowling Campbell dowling.campbell@nau.edu —

Academic Performance - Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School Hide Section
School Name: Chester Newton Charter and Montessori ~ School CTDS: 13-87-53-001
School
School Entity ID: 6142 Charter Entity ID: 4497
School Status: Open School Open Date: 07/01/1998
Physical Address: 30 Hwy 260 East Website: —

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/reports/interval_report/125[10/12/2011 8:52:59 AM]
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Five-Year Interval Report

Camp Verde, AZ 86322

Phone: 928-567-2363 Fax: 928-567-5374
Grade Levels Served: K-5 EY 2010 100t" Day ADM: 66.58
. AcademicPerformance Per Fiscal Year s
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
Elementary ELEM 358
2010 Performing — — Met
2009 — Underperforming — Yes
2008 — Performing — Yes
2007 — — Performing Yes
2006 — — Performing Yes

Academic Performance - Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School-Sunnyside Campustide section

School Name: Chester Newton Charter and Montessori ~ School CTDS: 13-87-53-002
School-Sunnyside Campus
School Entity ID: 79170 Charter Entity ID: 4497
School Status: Closed School Open Date: 08/14/2002
Physical Address: 24 Salt Mine Road Website: —
Camp Verde, AZ 86322
Phone: 928-567-2363 Fax: 928-567-5374
Grade Levels Served: 3-5 FY 2009 100™ Day ADM: —
~ AcademicPerformance PerFiscal Year  Hwsus
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
0

2009 No Data Available —
2008 No Data Available —
2007 No Data Available -

2006 No Data Available —

Academic Performance - Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School

School Name: Chester Newton Charter and Montessori ~ School CTDS: 13-87-53-003
School

School Entity ID: 79171 Charter Entity ID: 4497

School Status: Closed School Open Date: 07/01/1998

Physical Address: 800 Vah-Ki Inn Rd. Website: —

(St. Michaels Church)
Coolidge, AZ 85228

Phone: 928-567-2363 Fax: 928-567-5374
Grade Levels Served: — FY 2009 100t Day ADM: —
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
0

2009 No Data Available —
2008 No Data Available —

2007 No Data Available -

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/reports/interval_report/125[10/12/2011 8:52:59 AM]





Five-Year Interval Report

2006 No Data Available —

ormance - Montessori House Hide Section
School Name: Montessori House School CTDS: 13-87-53-005
School Entity ID: 79272 Charter Entity ID: 4497
School Status: Closed School Open Date: 07/01/2000
Physical Address: 2415 North Terrace Circle Website: —
Mesa, AZ 85203
Phone: 480-464-2800 Fax: —
Grade Levels Served: — EY 2009 100t" Day ADM: —
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hide Section
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
0

2009 No Data Available _
2008 No Data Available —
2007 No Data Available —

2006 No Data Available —

Academic Performance - Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School-Neuhaus CampusHide section

School Name: Chester Newton Charter and Montessori ~ School CTDS: 13-87-53-004
School-Neuhaus Campus
School Entity ID: 79513 Charter Entity ID: 4497
School Status: Site Transferred to Separate Charter School Open Date: 08/14/2002
Physical Address: 350 E. 18th Street Website: —
Yuma, AZ 85364
Phone: 928-782-2052 Fax: 928-782-2031
Grade Levels Served: K-6 FY 2009 100t" Day ADM: —
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hide Section
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
K-12 K12 10 358

2009 Performing Plus — - — —

2008 — Performing Plus - — —
2007 — — Performing Performing Plus —
2006 — — Performing Plus Underperforming —

Charter/Legal Compliance

Charter Corporate Name: Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School
Charter CTDS: 13-87-53-000 Charter Entity ID: 4497
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 01/05/1998
Timely Submission of AFR Hide Section Timely Submission of Budget Hide Section
Year Timely Year Timely
2010 Yes 2011 Yes

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/reports/interval_report/125[10/12/2011 8:52:59 AM]





Five-Year Interval Report

2009 Yes 2010 Yes
2008 Yes 2009 Yes
2007 Yes 2008 Yes
2006 Yes 2007 Yes
Special Education Monitoring Detail Hide Section
SPED Monitoring Date 03/04/2008 Child Identification Partial High
Evaluation/Re-evaluation: Partial High IEP Status: Partial High
Delivery of Service: In Compliance Procedural Safeguards: In Compliance
Sixty Day Item Due Date — ESS Compliance Date: —

Audit and Fiscal Compliance

Charter Corporate Name: Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School
Charter CTDS: 13-87-53-000 Charter Entity ID: 4497
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 01/05/1998
Timely Submission of Annual Audit Hide Section
Year Timely
2010 Yes
2009 Yes
2008 Yes
2007 Yes
2006 Yes
Audit Issues Requiring Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Hide Section

There were no CAP Issues for fiscal years 2006 to 2010.

Repeat Issues Identified through Audits Hide Section

There were no repeat findings for fiscal years 2006 to 2010.

~ Go to top
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Performance Management Plan (PMP)

Evaluation Instrument-

Scoring Criteria and Comments

Each Performance Management Plan will be evaluated based on the inclusion of the required elements within each section. The
evaluator will make the following determination:

FULL DESCRIPTION
PARTIAL DESCRIPTION
VERY LIMITED DESCRIPTION

— The plan sufficiently addresses all of the required elements.
— The plan partially addresses the required elements.
— The plan does not address each of the required elements.

I. PLAN NARRATIVE

instruction. (Ex: Lesson plan review, formal teacher
evaluations, informal classroom observations, checklists,
data review teams)

Required Elements A response that meets the requirement will include: V Comments
L
D
A detailed description of the school's efforts for the previous five years to provide The description provided for the past five years lacks
all efforts conducted by and implement a [mathematics or reading] curriculum that detail as to how the actions taken will result in
the school in the past five improves student achievement. (Ex: Curriculum alignment, improved pupil achievement.
years that demonstrates curriculum maps, pacing guides, instructional material
a concerted effort and adoptions, committee work, data review teams) X | The description provided does not include a
capacity to improve pupil continuous [or sequential] effort to provide a
achievement. curriculum that improves pupil achievement.
the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop No description was provided.
and implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the
Arizona Academic Standards into [mathematics or reading] X

the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop
and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting
student proficiency in [mathematics or reading]. (Ex:
Formative and summative assessments,
common/benchmark assessments, articulated assessment
plan, data review teams)

The description provided for the past [five] years
lacks detail as to how the actions taken has resulted
in a plan for monitoring and documenting student
proficiency.

01/07/10
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the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop
and implement a professional development plan that
supports effective implementation of a [mathematics or
reading] curriculum. (Ex: Articulated plan, literacy or math
coach support, external consultant training, data review
teams)

No description was provided.

A detailed description of
the process used for
conducting an analysis of
relevant pupil
achievement data.

the school’s efforts for the previous five years to analyze
relevant pupil achievement data. (Ex: datawalls, data
training, data review teams)

The description provided lacks reporting of detailed
efforts over five years to analyze relevant data.

a detailed description of the types of data collected and the
process used in conducting the analysis of the relevant
data.

The description provided for the past five years lacks
detail in the types of data collected as well as the
process for analyzing relevant data.

justification of how data selected for the analysis is relevant
to improving pupil achievement.

The description provided does not address how the
selected data is relevant to improving pupil
achievement.

The findings from the
data analysis.

the school’s detailed interpretation of the findings from the
data analysis of the school’s relevant data for the previous
five years, including patterns and trends, as well as
strengths and weaknesses.

No description was provided.

arepresentation of the findings using charts and graphs that
are understandable to the reviewer and clearly depict the
results.

The charts and graphs included were not relevant to
the findings from the data analysis.

A detailed description of
how the plan that is
presented is directly
linked to the findings
from the data analysis.

a description of the logic used to develop the PMP that
demonstrates the connection between the findings from
the analysis of the relevant data and the plan. (Ex: What we
learned - What we are going to do with what we learned)

No description was provided.

Il. PLAN TEMPLATE

Strategy I: Provide and implement a curriculum that improves student achievement.

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

Comments

Action Steps

action steps for each strategy are based on the findings
from the analysis of relevant data.

The action steps provided are not based on the
findings from the analysis of relevant data.

01/07/10

Page 2 of 5






o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end

The majority of the action steps provided are not
sequential or timely, or contribute to the school’s

R o . ; .
target(s). M ability to provide and implement a curriculum that
improves student achievement.
o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate, The majority of action steps provided complement
complement and support the other strategies. and support the other strategies.
o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide The majority of evidence does not include tangible
evidence of the implementation of each action step. R | items that demonstrate the implementation of each
M | action step.

Allocated Resources

o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to
implement the action steps that support the strategies.

M

For Math, the majority of the action steps were
supported with sufficiently identified resources.

For Reading, the majority of the action steps were
not supported with sufficiently identified resources.

Strategy Il: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic Standards into instruction.

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

Comments

Action Steps

o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings

The action steps provided are not based on the

from the analysis of relevant data. I\R/I findings from the analysis of relevant data.

o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and The majority of the action steps provided are not
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end sequential and timely, or contribute to the school’'s
target(s). R | ability to develop and implement a plan for

M| monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic
Standards the improves student achievement.

o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate, R The majority of the action steps provided do not
complement and support the other strategies. M complement and support the other strategies.

o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide The majority of the evidence does not include
evidence of the implementation of each action step. R | tangible items that demonstrate the implementation

M| of each action step.

Allocated Resources

o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to
implement the action steps that support the strategies.

For Math, the majority of the action steps were
supported with sufficiently identified resources.

For Reading, the majority of the action steps were
not supported with sufficiently identified resources.

01/07/10
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Strategy Ill: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency.

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

Comments

Action Steps

o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings

The action steps provided are not based on the

from the analysis of relevant data. II\?/I findings from the analysis of relevant data.

o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and The majority of the action steps provided are not
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end sequential and timely, or contribute to the school’'s
target(s). R | ability to develop and implement a plan for

M| monitoring and documenting student proficiency that
improves student achievement.

o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate, The majority of the action steps provided
complement and support the other strategies. complement and support the other strategies.

o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide R The majority of the action steps were not supported
evidence of the implementation of each action step. M with sufficiently identified resources.

Allocated Resources

o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to
implement the action steps that support the strategies.

R
M

Strategy IV: Develop and implement a professional development plan that s

upports effective implementation of the curriculum.

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

Comments

Action Steps

o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings

The action steps provided are not based on the

from the analysis of relevant data. :\q/l findings from the analysis of relevant data.

o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and The majority of the action steps provided are not
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end sequential and timely, or contribute to the school’'s
target(s). R ability to develop and implement a professional

M development plan that supports effective
implementation of the curriculum and improves
student achievement.

o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate, R The majority of the action steps provided do not
complement and support the other strategies. M complement and support the other strategies.

o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide The majority of the evidence does not include
evidence of the implementation of each action step. R | tangible items that demonstrate the implementation

M| of each action step.

01/07/10
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Allocated Resources

(e]

adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to
implement the action steps that support the strategies.

The majority of the action steps were

not supported with sufficiently identified resources.

01/07/10
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Detailed Business Plan Section Checklist

Charter Holder: Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School (Entity ID 4497)

Each Detailed Business Plan will be reviewed to determine if all of the required elements have been addressed:

Yes — Required element addressed.
No — Required element not addressed.
Not Applicable — Required element not applicable to the charter holder.

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (Board) staff will complete the Detailed Business Plan Section Checklist. The Checklist will be used by
the Board in its consideration of the charter holder’s request for charter renewal. “ No” answers may adversely affect the Board’'s decision

regarding a charter holder’s request for charter renewal.

Il b.1. CHARTER HOLDER’'S ORGANIZATIONAL MEMBERSHIP

Renewal Instructions with fiscal years clearly identified.

Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS

o Evidence of the appropriate filings with either the Board, Arizona X
Corporation Commission or both submitted.
Il b.2. CHARTER HOLDER’S FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
PART A — RENEWAL BUDGET PLAN

Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS
o Completed Renewal Budget Plan submitted. X
o 4 years of financial information provided as required by the X

Page 1 of 4





o Renewal Budget Plan includes average daily membership (ADM) X The Renewal Budget Plan includes the
used in each fiscal year and the basis for projected ADM. ADM for each fiscal year, but does not
provide the basis for the projected
increases of 11 ADM and 27 ADM in
fiscal years 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Based on information available through
the Arizona Department of Education’s
website, the charter holder experienced
an annual increase in its ADM between
fiscal years 2006 through 2008 to 90.164
in 2008. Since 2008, the charter holder’s
ADM has decreased annually. For fiscal
year 2011, the charter holder's ADM was
62.314. As of October 18, 2011, the
charter holder’s estimated count for fiscal
year 2012 was 76.5.

o Assumptions provided for key components of the Renewal Budget X Aside from equalization assistance,

Plan, including the basis for all projected revenue line items used. assumptions were not provided for all
projected revenue line items used.
(Please see above for information
regarding the projected ADM included by
the charter holder in the Renewal Budget

Plan.)
o Increases or decreases of 10% or more in the “total expenses” X Although not addressed specifically,
line item from year to year in the Renewal Budget Plan are information disclosed in the Renewal
explained in the “ Assumptions/Notes” section. Budget Plan and the narrative provided

separately address the increases in total
expenses of approximately 16% from
fiscal year 2012 to 2013 and
approximately 17% from fiscal year 2013
to 2014.

Page 2 of 4





o Each “Other” line item used is explained in the X The “ Other” revenue line item was not

“Assumptions/Notes” section to specify what is included. explained.

o For those required to submit the Academic Performance Section of X The math and reading performance
the renewal application, the charter holder’s previous two audits management plans submitted by the
and the Renewal Budget Plan demonstrate the charter holder has charter holder indicate that the duration
the financial capacity to implement the “ budget” as detailed in the of each plan is from August 8, 2011 to
Academic Performance Section. May 24, 2012. However, the last page of

each plan includes a three-year budget.
The charter holder appears to have the
financial capacity to implement the fiscal
year 2012 budget. For fiscal years 2013
and 2014 budgets, the answer is also
“yes” assuming the project ADM for
each year is realized.

o Renewal Budget Plan is mathematically correct. X Taking into account rounding issues, the
Renewal Budget Plan is mathematically
correct.

Please note that based on the fiscal year
2010 audit, the charter holder had net
assets of $61,590 at June 30, 2010.

Il b.2. CHARTER HOLDER’S FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
PART B — FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY NARRATIVE

Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS

o For those required to complete the renewal application’s “ Charter X
Holder’s Financial Sustainability” section because at least one of
the two previous audits identified a going concern or identified
negative net assets or negative members’/stockholders’ equity at
year end, a narrative is provided.

Page 3 of 4





o Narrative does not exceed one page in length. X

o Narrative explains the charter holder’s current financial situation. X

o Narrative includes the specific steps the charter holder has already X
taken to improve its financial situation and ensure the continued
financial sustainability of the charter school(s).

o Evidence provided that supports each of the steps already taken by X
the charter holder to improve its financial situation and ensure the
continued financial sustainability of the charter school(s).

TOTAL (Sections Il b.1, Il b.2 Part A, and Il b.2 Part B) 6 3 5

Check one (required):

1 MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS (All applicable “ Required Elements” received a “Yes” .)

DOES NOT MEET THE REQUIREMENTS (One or more applicable “ Required Elements” received a “No” .)

Board Staff Review Date: October 27, 2011
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Renewal Application

Welcome Laura Tucker | Logout

— CTDS: 10-87-90-000 | Entity ID: 79502 —
r

Arizona State ,
Board for ' ¥ 4 - . ' OV

8l Web Site

Renewal Application

Downloads

a Download all files
Note: Please be patient. This may take up to a few minutes to complete depending on the number of files included with this application.

Academic Performance

Performance Management Plan
a Download File — 2011-2012 Charter Renewal Part | - Performance Management Plan Narrative including charts.
a Download File — 2011-2012 Charter Renewal Part I-B- Performance Management Template- Reading and Math
a Download File — 2011-2012 Charter Renewal Part |- Academic Oversight Narrative
a Download File — Academic Oversight -Attachment-Board Minutes / Agendas-#1
a Download File — Academic Oversight -Attachment-Board Minutes/Agendas-#2
a Download File — Academic Oversight-Attachment-Board Minutes/Agendas-#3
a Download File — Academic Oversight-Attachment-Board Minutes/Agendas-#4
a Download File — Academic Oversight-Attachment-Board Minutes/Agendas-#5
a Download File — Academic Oversight-Attachment-Board Minutes/Agendas-#6

Detailed Business Plan

Charter Holder’s Organizational Membership
a Download File — 2011-2012 Charter Renewal- Detailed Business Plan-Part II-Corporation Commission Filing Attachment

Charter Holder’s Financial Sustainability - Part A
2 Download File — 2011-2012 Part |l Detailed Business Plan Narritive
a Download File — 2011-2012 Budget Template
a Download File — 2011-2012 Part 11-2009 & 2010 Audit Reports

Charter Holder’s Financial Sustainability - Part B:
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I. IDENTIFICATION

The Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School (referred to as CNCMS) was established in 1997 at
30 HWY 260 E, Camp Verde, AZ 86322. CTDS 138753000. In fall 1997 the school enrolled 27 K-2"
graders and now goes through gu grade. As of August 1, enrollment for the fall 2011 academic year was
90 students. In spite of severe state cutbacks, this enrollment figure is positive for us.

II. MISSION

The mission of Chester Newton Charter and Montessori School is to provide to students in the Camp
Verde and surrounding area a quality Montessori educational program as an alternative to public school
clementary education, offering viable intellectual growth for all students and involving parents in unique
student-related programs. It is our mission, through the Montessori method, to meet individual
children’s needs while simultaneously creating an atmosphere of cooperation, teamwork, and group
participation.

III. DESCRIPTION

The Montessori program brings a new educational methodology to the Verde Valley. We maintained
membership with the American Montessori Society until 2009, when we could no longer afford the
$4,000 yearly membership because of financial cutbacks by the state. We continue to align our
curriculum goals and student growth objectives with national Montessori educational guidelines as well
as with Arizona State Standards and common core standards.

Dr. Maria Montessori began developing her educational methods before the turn of the 20™ century.
Since then those methods have become increasingly popular throughout the world. A range of
demonstrative study materials, best known as manipulatives, has grown into a worldwide industry.
CNCMS is equipped with the latest manipulatives.

During the last century the price of Montessori education has increased dramatically. Private schools
have priced Montessori classes out of reach for most public school children. Since Camp Verde is a
distressed and depressed area economically, Dr. Betty Chester made it part of our mission to reach out to
those who could not afford a Montessori education. She had such good results with the Montessori
school she built in Flagstaff in the early 1980s that she wanted to bring Montessori education to the
Verde Valley. The charter school system seemed the best way to achieve her educational outreach.

Most of our parents had never heard of Maria Montessori or Montessori schools before we established
Chester Newton. We made it part of our mission to reach out to many students whose parents cannot
afford to drive them to school and some who do not even have cars or trucks.

Montessori classes accommodate children of mixed ages, each combination classroom containing
generally three grade levels. CNCMS contains pre-school-K in one class, 1-3 in another class, and 4-6
in another class. Each classroom is equipped with manipulatives that lead children through progressive
learning sequences. Hence, younger children learn from older peer students in the same classroom.

Montessori manipulatives cover a wide range of educational activities, including reading, writing, math,
science, and social studies. One of the most prominent manipulatives for pre-school-K children is the
“pink tower.” Young children see at a glance how proportion and size operate. The children work with





the gradations of volume and size, unaware of the metric principles involved that they are yet to
discover.

In math, the Gold Bead materials incorporate all basic mathematical processes—addition, subtraction,
multiplication, and division. The vision, touch, and placement of these physical manipulatives help
form complex math processes in the mmd One goal is for students to learn the multiplication facts
through reason and calculation rather than having to memorize without understanding or visualization.

Science manipulatives include vocabulary and picture cards. Reading is involved as these cards include
definitions, messages, and processes. Science cabinets contain items such as leaves, rocks and other
specimens.

This mixed learning environment stimulates children to learn through direct experience and social
interaction. Individualized contracts prompt independent thinking as well as responsibility. As children
learn competency in the “basics,” they apply that learning to more abstract processes. Our state and
common core standards also correlate with scientifically research-based Saxon Math and Open Court
Reading.

This education takes specially skilled and trained teachers. We pay for our teachers to attend
Montessori summer workshops in Phoenix, Houston, and New York. Educators generally consider a
Montessori Certificate the equivalent of a masters level degree.

One of the challenges for rural schools is to attract capable and certified teachers. Each of our
classrooms has a Montessori certified teacher. Each classroom also includes an assistant or aide. Our
new principal is also Montessori trained. All of our teachers are “highly qualified,” with the exception
of our Kindergarten teacher, who is completing her ECI training and will be taking the necessary course
work in “Arizona Constitution.”

It is important for all educators to realize how different children learn in different ways. Our combined
approaches to academics, including our multi-aged classes, are designed to help present those different
ways. On August 18, 2011, a leading Arizona educator stated on Channel 12 News that the
social/emotional support that schools provide is just as important to the total educational picture as are
the academics. Our school reaches out to sorely needed social/emotional needs for our children as well
as to academic needs.

We monitor standards with weekly lesson plans, which are turned in to the principal. It is the prmmpaI S
task to make sure these standards are occurring in the classroom.

IV. ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE SECTION

We view this academic performance section of our Performance Management Plan as the heartbeat of
our school. It reflects the closest picture we have of actual learning going on in our students. This plan
details several strategies for meeting our academic targets. While we will report our progress in annual
reports to the Charter School Board, we welcome periodic visits by or requests from the board at any
time.

In January the Charter School Association conducted a charter renewal training session in which they
passed out a training session “Performance Management Plan” evaluation. This evaluation listed
various items to be addressed during our application. We have followed the “Performance Management
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Plan” contained in the renewal application. The topics listed in the training “Performance Management
Plan” are addressed in our application’s “Performance Management Plan.”

In following the RENEWAL APPLICATION PACKAGE INSTRUCTIONS, the components of our
plan include A. Narrative, B. Template, and C. Documentation of Academic Oversight. Rather than
writing a narrative for each template, we have prepared an inclusive narrative, as confirmed to us by the
Charter Board (Sept. 1, 2011).

A. Narrative for Templates.

1. Previous Efforts to Improve Pupil Achievement.

Our previous efforts during the last five years to improve pupil achievement have included Montessori
Made Manageable, teacher professional development, lesson plans, AIMS scores data, special
programs, and School Improvement.

The purpose of the Montessori Made Manageable program is to align Montessori lessons with Arizona
State Standards. This program is a correlation devised by a private company. Although we created and
submitted an alignment program when we first applied for our charter in 1997, we purchased and
applied this correlation in order to improve pupil achievement. The correlation allows teachers to know
more quickly which state standard their particular Montessori lesson refers to. It also allows for more
accurate documentation.

As part of our pupil improvement effort, our former principal provided professional development for our
teachers regarding the use of formative (i.e. teacher-made tests) and summative data for student
assessment. Dr. Sullivan pointed out the strands and concepts of the state standards and that the AIMS
testing revealed weak academic scores in our students. In looking through our records, we discovered
that before the school year 2010-2011 even began, our former principal allowed this correlation program
to slide.

In the fall of 2010, she also stopped requiring student assessments to be turned in with weekly lesson
plans. When the school director checked up on her, she carefully hid this fact and led the director to
believe that the assessments were being used for student and teacher planning, flashing a couple of
student records for confirmation from time to time.

Last year we upgraded our Title I and our ELL programs from part-time consultant positions to that of a
full time faculty member. We now have a full time faculty member teaching both Title I and ELL. This
improvement has allowed us to move Title I students from twice a week to daily instruction. Now the
ELL students have their own half-day class every day.

We entered School Improvement 09-10 based on a single 08-09 class. This class had 12 students, all of
whom were in special programs. Because our other classes were too small, this one was the only
eligible class we were rated on. While we felt at the time that the sampling was therefore insufficient,
we welcomed the help that the School Improvement team provided. In 10-11 we were no longer in
school improvement. Our 2011 AIMS scores have since been invalidated due to our former principal’s
unprofessional behavior. Details of this unprofessional behavior appear in section C. Documentation
of Academic Oversight.

2) Process for Conducting Analysis of Pupil Achievement.
The principal and school director analyzed relevant pupil-achievement data over the past five years by
examining AIMS scores, evaluating individual child progress, and identifying and placing those who





Data Monitoring Report Agenda

Grade levels: Date

Teacher name:

Weekly data meeting agenda/Student progress.

Group/team discussion. Review of grade-book, test scores, student work, etc. Content areas will rotate
each week. Please bring evidence of student work and grade report.

*Circle one: Math, reading, science or other assessment

Number of students- low: middle: High:

RTIIEP, other strategies you are using:

Have the low students made progress since last week?
Yes No

How will you re-teach or challenge students?

Group suggestions and/or feedback:

*Please provide Loretta with a copy of your completed individual reports each week, after the data
meetings.





were falling far behind in special programs. Those who were exceeding were placed in advanced
curricular activities.

State standards delineated in AIMS results were examined to find weaknesses. Once weaknesses were
determined, teachers were shown where different students needed to concentrate. Students were placed
in ELL, Title [, or Special Education as needed. This particular data had to be segregated.

Before each new school year started, teachers were told to examine AIMS scores of both returning and
new students. We did not know how good teachers were in accurately determining where that best
placement was for their students. As a result of this problem area, we hired Loretta Donovan, who had
the RTI (Response To Intervention) capabilities we needed. We recognized that we needed more
specific assessments to analyze specific results to develop databased strategies.

This process is already underway. An important step is this “Data Monitoring Agenda,” drawn up by
our principal and now circulating among teachers in order to better and more promptly identify student
progress:

a. Grade charts for 2005-2010.

We have drawn up the following 5-year demographic grade chart to reveal pupil achievement. The
grade patterns below reflect the last five years of measuring AIMS scores in grades 3-5. Scores are
recorded for math, reading, writing, and science. Our rating system follows the state format of

“exceeds,

9 &

meets,

” “approaches,” and “falls far below.” Alongside these results we list special

program enrollment, such as Title I, English Language Learners, and Special Education. Finally, we
look at the years students have been enrolled in our school.

Teachers are designated by first initial of last name; team teachers by initial slash initial.

CHESTER NEWTON SCHOOL

GRADE / DEOMOGRAPHIC PROFILE CHART

RATINGS SPECIAL PROGRAMS
FALLS FAR Eng Lang Special

2005-2006 EXCEED | MEETS | approach | BELOW Title | Learners | Education Years Attending
Grade 3 (Teachers) C/D--13 students
MATH 1(8%) | 7(54%) | 2(15%) | 3(23%) || 3(23%) | 8 (61%) 2 (15%) less than 1 yr =2
READING 0 7(54%) | 5(38%) | 1(8%) || 3(23%) | 8(61%) 2 (15%) 1yr=2, 2yrs=4
WRITING 0 7 (54%) | 6 (46%) 0 3(23%) | 8(61%) 2 (15%) 3yrs=3,4yrs=2
Grade 4 K--8 students
MATH 0 3(38%) | 4(50%) | 1(13%) || 1(13%) | 2 (25%) 1 (13%) less than 1 yr =1
READING 0 3 (38%) | 3(38%) | 2(25%) 1(13%) 2 (25%) 1(13%) 1yr=4,2yrs=0
WRITING 0 3 (38%) | 5(63%) 0 1(13%) 2 (25%) 1(13%) 3yrs=3
Grade 5 K—12 students
MATH 0 4(33%) | 4(33%) | 4(33%) || 1(8%) | 1(8%) 3 (25%) less than 1 yr=3
READING 0 5(42%) | 4(33%) | 3(25%) || 1(8%) | 1(8%) 3 (25%) 1yr=4, 2yrs=3
WRITING 0 5(41%) | 7 (58%) 0 1(8%) | 1(8%) 3 (25%) 3yrs=2






FALLS FAR Eng Lang Special
2006-2007 | EXCEED | MEETS | approacn | BELOW Titlel | Learners | Education | Years Attending |
Grade 3 R--13 students
MATH 1(8%) | 3(23%) | 4(31%) | 5(38%) || 2 (15%) 1(8%) 0 less than | yr=2
READING 1(8%) | 6(46%) | 5(38%) | 1(8%) 2 (15%) 1(8%) 0 1yr=5,2yrs=3
WRITING 0 6 (46%) | 2(15%) | 1 (8%) 2 (15%) 0 0 3yrs=1,4yrs=2
Grade 4
MATH Data Missing
READING
WRITING
Grade 5 M--6 students
MATH 0 3(50%) | 2(33%) | 1(17%) || 2(33%) | 2(33%) 0 less than | yr=0
READING 0 3(50%) | 2(33%) | 1(17%) || 2(33%) | 2(33%) 0 1yr=2, 2yrs=2
WRITING 0 4 (67%) | 2(33%) 0 2(33%) | 2(33%) 0 3yrs=2
FALLS FAR Eng Lang Special
2007-2008 EXCEED | MEETS | approacH | BELOW Title | Learners Educatio Years Attending
Grade 3 R--14 students
MATH 1(8%) | 4(29%) | 5(36%) | 4(29%) || 3(21%) | 4 (29%) 0 less than | yr=3
READING 0 6 (43%) | 5(36%) | 3(21%) 1(7%) 2 (14%) 0 1yr=2, 2yrs=1
WRITING 0 9 (64%) | 4 (29%) | 1(8%) 3(21%) | 4(29%) 0 3yrs=4, 4yrs=4
Grade 4 M--14 students
MATH 1(7%) | 4(29%) | 4 (29%) | 5 (36%) 1(7%) 2 (14%) 0 less than 1 yr=1
READING 1(7%) | 8(57%) | 3(21%) | 2 (14%) 1(7%) 2 (14%) 0 1yr=3,2yrs=4,3yrs
WRITING 0 12(86%) | 2 (14%) 0 1(7%) 2 (14%) 0 =3,4yr=1,5yr=2
Grade 5 M--6 students
MATH 0 3(50%) | 2(33%) | 1(17%) || 2(33%) | 2(33%) 0 1yr=2
READING 0 3(50%) | 2(33%) | 1(17%) || 2(33%) | 2(33%) 0 2 yrs=2
WRITING 0 4 (67%) | 2(33%) 0 2(33%) | 2(33%) 0 4 yrs=2
Eng
2008- F,?'A',';S Lang | Special
2009 EXCEED|MEETS |approacn| BELOW Title | |Learners|Education| Years Attending
Grade3  R/S—12 students
MATH 1(8%) |5 (42%))3 (25%)3 (25%)| |7 (58%)| 2 (16%) | 3 (25%) | less than 1 yr=1
READING| 0 |6 (50%)[3 (25%)[3 (25%)] |7 (58%)| 2 (16%) | 3 (25%) | 1yr=3,2yr=1,3yr
WRITING 0 [6(50%)i4 (33%)12 (16%)| |7 (58%)| 2 (16%) | 3 (25%) | =3,4yr=2,5yr=2
Grade 4  P--9 students
MATH 1 (11%)1 (11%)|5 (56%)[2 (22%)| |3 (33%)| 4 (44%) 0 less than | yr=1
READING| 0 |5 (56%)[1 (11%)[3 (33%)| |3 (33%)| 4 (44%) 0 1yr=2 2yr=1
WRITING 0 [7(78%)2(22%)] O 3 (33%)| 4 (44%) 0 Syrs=4
Grade 5  P--9 students
MATH |1 (11%)|2 (22%)12 (22%)|4 (44%) L 0 | 2 (22%) | 0 less than 1 yr=1






READING|1 (11%)15 (56%)[2 (22%)|1 (11%) 0 [2(22%) 0 1yr=2,2yr=2,3yr=2

WRITING| 0 |6 (68%)2 (22%)[1 (11%) 0 0 0 4yr=1,6yr=1
Eng

2009- F?k,'is Lang | Special

2010 EXCEED|MEETS |approacu| BELOW Title | [Learners|Education| Years Attending |

Grade 3 R/S—11 students
MATH 1(9%) |2 (18%)|5 (45%)|3 (27%) No data listed
READING| 1(9%) |5 (45%)|5 (45%)] 0
WRITING

Grade 4 P—7 students
MATH 0 [2(29%) 0 [5(71%)
READING| 0 |3 (43%)[1 (14%)|3 (43%)
SCIENCE |1 (14%)[2 (29%)] 0 4 (57%)

Grade 5 P—8 students
MATH 0 0 |2 (25%)[6 (75%)
READING| 0 |4 (50%)]2 (25%)|2 (25%)
WRITING 0 |3(38%)5(63%) O

OVERALL NUMBERS FOR GRADES 3-5, 2005-2010:

RATING NO. OF STUDENTS PERCENTAGE
EXCEEDS 13 4%
MEETS 183 45%
APPROACHES 125 31%
FALLS FAR BEHIND 82 20%

3) Findings from Data—Grade Analysis and Teacher Profiles.
Once we have identified grade problem areas, we can strategize how to improve them.

An important step in improving failing scores is special help. We have purposely designed the grade
chart to allow us to see at a glance if we are getting those lower achieving students into our special
programs. The column “falling far behind” is next to the columns for “special programs,” so that the
numbers can easily be compared.

As we did when we were rated “Performing Plus” in 2004, we need to improve both ends of our ratings,
decreasing the number of “Falls far behind” pupils while increasing the number of “Exceeds” pupils.

a. Grade analysis.

Many factors need to be considered here, the most important being our small student population, our
transient parents, the pressures of our economically stressed community, and a better method of
targeting students in need of special programs.

Small numbers of students mean that individual performances magnify results. This magnification
impacts reliability of interpretation. It is difficult to determine how reliable our measure of such a small
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population is in reflecting valid academic growth and achievement. Our percentages suggest that we are
pretty much in the norm of other schools.

In the academic year 07-08, only 5 children remained with the school 5 years or longer. Our percentage
of parents who are transient is difficult to measure, but a high percent seem to come and go every year.
Several factors prompt our parents to move, among them a poor economy and pressure on illegal aliens.
Our present poverty rate is 82%.

In the year 1988 a study came out confirming the importance of students staying with the Montessori
program for longer than a single year. This is a study of K-4 students: “When children attended
Montessori classes for 3-4 years, 90% scored in the 90™ percentile.” [Stasky, Dr. Paul J. and Betty J.
Chester. “Now We Have Some Ideas: Achievement Tests and Self-Esteem in Montessori School
Graduates.” The Constructive Triangle: American Montessori Society, New York, spring 1988.] While
this study used a considerably higher socio-economic population in a private Montessori school, the
need for student retention in the program remains the same.

The grade progress chart illustrates the challenge to target lower achieving students for special
programs. We placed our “falls far behind” column next to the “Title I” programs listed in special
programs. We can tell at a glance that the number of students falling far behind remains close to the
number in our Title I, ELL, and Special Education programs.

Our current new goal now is to identify and target students much sooner in the academic school year,
moving the “falling far behind” into “approaching, “the “approaching” into “meets,” and the “meets”
into “exceeding.” We realize the importance of student improvement..

In January 2010 we began a testing program with NWEA (Northwest Educational Assessments,
included in Academic Oversights), sponsored by Yavapai County. This assessment program is
conducted 3 times a year to give schools more prompt achievement measurement data to improve
instruction. This year the “Galileo” program will be used. This program will provide a standardized
data collecting capability for students needs identification early in the year. We have upgraded our
technological capabilities and are waiting on the Yavapai County Educational Services Agency to place
our assessment tools on line. This program, scheduled to begin September 15, will also provide us with
yet another progress monitoring tool.

Targeting students earlier will not only give them a head start but also help assist us in identifying RTI
(Response to Instruction) needs for teachers much sooner. Then formative and summative data can be
tracked to make sure students are moving in positive directions. We now have a principal who is not
only committed to this process but also capable of working on it.

b. Teacher profiles 2005-2010.

An important part of our findings involves our teacher profiles. While it is impossible to measure the
exact impact that a teacher has on grade progress or regress, there is no doubt that every teacher plays an
important role in each pupils’ performance. We therefore include this profile as an additional analysis
tool.

Keep in mind that these reports refer to students in mixed age classes; there is no single 3, 4™ or 5
grade class. During 2005-06 we had two 1% -3 grade classes and one 4™ —5" grade class.

2005-06
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g grade. We had two third grade teachers, who were each teaching grades 1-3. The first teacher was a
new Highly Qualified teacher. She was new out of college when she came to us. We paid for her
Montessori training. This was the last of 3 years for her to teach with us. She told us her religion was in
conflict with our curriculum.

Our other third grade teacher quit after a few months because of personal difficulties. She was not
Montessori trained. She was also from out of state, which means she received reciprocity from the state
of Arizona that qualified her while we made plans for her Montessori training,.

Our 4™-5"grade teacher came to us also with out-of-state reciprocity. This teacher remained only one
year, 80 we did not have time to send her to Montessori training.

2006-07
3" grade. In order to teach for us, this 3 grade teacher applied for and received an Emergency

Certificate for the state. She was college educated and was finishing her elementary certificate and
Montessori certificate.

Our 4"™"_grade teacher was a new NAU graduate and showed promise with her students.

2007-08
3rd grade. Our continuing 3™ grade teacher was still struggling with several children rated as “far

below.”

Our returning 4"-5™ grade teacher did well. After this year’s teaching, however, this teacher went home
to the Navajo reservation as a school administrator.

2008-09
3™ grade. A new teacher Joined our returning third grade teacher for two third grade classes again this
year. She came to us with both Montessori training and HQ status.

For this year’s 4"-5"-grade teacher, we advanced a 1% grade teacher to our 4™.5™_grade class. We

trained her in Montessori the summer before we put her in this class.

This was the year we entered school improvement. Our numbers were too small to count in 4M-5%
grade. We were flagged for school improvement because we had only 9 students in each of our 4™ and
5 grades to offset our 3" grade class of 12 students, all in special programs. Although we did not
realize it, we now believe our principal’s neglect was also beginning to catch up to us.

2009-10
Our two 3™ grade teachers remained the same and made what we considered satisfactory progress with

their students.

Our 4"-5"_grade teacher struggled. During the summer of 2010, she disappeared. We even filed a
missing person’s report. In late June, we discovered, not from her, that a Sedona charter school offered
to “buy out” her third year with us. They never paid off, however.

4) How Plan Is Linked to Findings.

Both mathematics and reading templates indicate our action plan for improving student achievement.
We link our “Performance Management” plan directly to our data analysis by combining personnel
action with consultation. We have established a more cooperative relationship between teachers and
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principal/director involving more detailed work. Teachers draw up their lesson plans and go over them
with principal. Teachers then implement the lessons to their students. After a decided time, teachers
conduct testing, documenting both formative and summative results. Teachers confer on these results
with the principal via weekly “data” meetings.

Depending upon the findings, different actions can be applied: to re-teach the material, to realign lesson
plans with closer correlation to Arizona State and common core standards, to apply RTI strategies,
whether to emphasize portfolio reviews, or a combination of these approaches. The principal reports to
and updates director on each of these stages. Director examines teachers’ and principal’s work on an
unscheduled basis.

In response to our downward sliding math scores, our teachers have developed a “scope and sequence”
document designed to better align our Montessori math with Arizona State Common Core standards.
They began this curriculum design in our school workshops in April 2011. You will see confirmation of
these meetings in the “documentation” section.

The scope = the yearly view, while the sequence = how we get the students there.

For more than ten years Chester Newton School has been using research-based Saxon Math (tests,
workbooks, homework assignments) to better complement Montessori materials already on hand. We
update our Saxon Math whenever new editions appear. Our two 1%-3™ grade teachers and our single 4"
5 -grade teacher teach both Saxon and Montessori math in the same classes. Saxon is more traditional
in that a student envisions 10 x 100 in the brain, whereas Montessori Gold Beads actually show 1,000
beads in an actual block. Our students receive both approaches. In addition, we are using AIMS web
practice (on-line) and Buckle Down workbooks to give students more practice in test taking. Both the
AIMS web and workbooks are listed in our documentation section.

Throughout the math performance management plan, our school will be giving assessments by
computers, books, and Montessori materials testing. The computer program assessment “Galileo” will
provide more immediate feedback. “Galileo™ is the current program that Yavapai County Education
Service Agency is using to replace last year’s NWEA (Northwest Education Assessments) progran.

We’ll also be conducting more frequent and prompt analyses of student portfolios, so that we will have
evidence of work and we will know within a few days if each assignment has been achieved and
understood by each student. We can then determine how successful our students are, and if we need to
provide more appropriate interventions for student growth and achievement.

Teacher lesson plans now relate more directly to Arizona State Common Core Standards in math. We
have renewed our efforts to align curriculum with teacher assignments so that teachers are teaching to
their strength.

Just as they did with math, our teachers developed a “scope and sequence” curriculum to be applied to
reading. Our “Staff Notes™ section demonstrates the documentation. Montessori reading methods are
aligned with Arizona State and common core standards.

In our attempt to present more than one-way of learning, we teach two approaches to reading: Open
Court and Montessori. Open Court tells students directly what they will be learning. The Montessori
method presents a word environment of processes and prompts or encourages students to figure out for
themselves what’s happening, hence creating greater intellectual ownership. Individual teacher
assignment is important to the success of this methodology.





Domain and Number

Key Ideas and Details
RLO3 -1

Key Ideas and Details
RLO3 -2

Key Ideas and Details
RLO3 -3

Craft and Structure
RLO3 -4

Craft and Structure
RLO3 -5

Craft and Structure
RLO3 -6

Integration of Knowledge and

Ideas
RLO3 -7

BLUEPRINT FOR LEARNING
Scope & Sequence/Curriculum Guide

Grade: Third Subject: Language Arts Month: August

Standard and Cluster Academic Vocabula Ways to Assess Understandin
Ask and answer questions to Explicitly Teacher Observation
demonstrate understanding of a Referring Open Court Reading Program

text, referring explicitly to the text
as the basis for the answers

Recount stories, including fables, Fables Teacher Observation
folktales, and myths from diverse Myths Open Court Reading Program
cultures; determine the central Folktales
message, lesson, or moral and Moral
explain how it is conveyed Message

through key details in the text
Teacher Observation
Characters Open Court Reading Program

Sequence of Events

Describe characters in a story and
explain how their actions
contribute to the sequence of

events
Determine the meaning of words Literal Teacher Observation
and phrases as they are used in a Non-Literal Open Court Reading Program
text, distinguishing literal from Assessments
non-literal language
Refer to parts of stories, dramas, Stories Teacher Observation
and poems when writing or Dramas Open Court Reading Program
speaking about a text, using terms Poems Assessments
such as chapter, scene, and stanza: Scene
describe how each successive part Stanza
builds on earlier sections Chapter

Distinguish their own point of
view from that of the narrator or
those of the characters

Point of View Teacher Observation

Open Court Reading Program

Explain how specific aspects of a Convey
text’s illustrations contribute to [lustrations
what is conveyed by the words in
the story

Teacher Observation
Open Court Reading Program

Materials

Group Discussion
Open Court Material

Group Discussion
Open Court Material

Group Discussion
Open Court Material

Group Discussion
Open Court Material

Group Discussion
Open Court Material

Group Discussion
Open Court Material

Group Discussion
Open Court Material





Domain and Number

Solve Problems Involving the
Four Operations, and Identify and
Explain Patterns in Arithmetic
3.0A-8

Solve Problems Involving the
Four Operations, and Identify and
Explain Patterns in Arithmetic
3.0A-9

Use Place Value Understanding

and Properties of Operations to

Perform Multi-Digit Arithmetic
3INBT-1

Use Place Value Understanding

and Properties of Operations to

Perform Multi-Digit Arithmetic
3.NBT-2

Develop Understanding of
Fractions as Numbers
3INF-1

BLUEPRINT FOR LEARNING

Scope & Sequence/Curriculum Guide

Grade: Third

Standard and Cluster

Solve two-step word problems
using the four operations.
Represent these problems using
equations with a letter standing for
the unknown quantity. Assess the
reasonableness of answers using
mental computation and
estimation strategies including
rounding

Identify arithmetic patterns and
explain them using properties of
operations

Use place value understanding to
round whole numbers to the
nearest 10 or 100

Fluently add and subtract within
1000 using strategies and
algorithms based on place value,
properties of operations, and/or the
relationship between addition and
subtraction

Understand a fraction 1/b as the
quantity formed by | part when a
whole is partitioned into b equal
parts; understand a fraction a/b as
the quantity formed by a parts of
size 1/b

Subject: Math

Academic Vocabulary

Word Problems
Unknown Quantity
Letter Standing

Patterns
Properties of Operation

Place Value
Whole Number
Round

Algorithms
Strategies

Fraction
Equal Parts

Ways to Assess Understandin

Month: August

In Class Activities
Weekly Assessinents
Homework

In Class Activities
Weekly Assessments
Homework

In Class Activities
Weekly Assessments
Homework

In Class Activities
Weekly Assessments
Homework

[n Class Activities
Weekly Assessments
Homework

Materials

Saxon Math
Various Montessori Tools

Saxon Math
Various Montessoti Tools

Saxon Math
Various Montessori Tools

Saxon Math

Various Montessori Tools

Saxon Math
Various Montessori Tools
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Our Open Court reading materials present the traditional way of teaching reading. The teacher does
more “lecturing” and explaining to the entire class. The teaching is therefore more direct than
individualized and requires group memorization. We are using this method of teaching reading. This
program is research based.

Our team teaching approach using Montessori materials adds numerous activities appropriate to a grade
level that give students opportunities to learn more about word function as they learn word meaning.
For example, students discover parts of speech as they learn their vocabulary. Writing is more precisely
integrated into the reading experience. Montessori students learn word structures, such as suffixes and
prefixes as well as synonyms, homonyms, and antonyms. Phonics is also applied.

The Montessori method encourages students to build their own sentences rather than have the teacher or
a book build the sentence and present it to them for memorization purposes only. We try to design our
teaching so that memorization comes not as a separate task but as a natural step toward further learning.

We also use various other programs, such as Lexia and AIMS web (both computerized reading
programs), along with DIBELS for tracking students’ reading ability. The “Galileo” program will also
be used as it becomes available (September 15).

All this methodology is communicated to parents during conferences.

A major function of our initial charter in 1997 was alignment with the Arizona State Standards. The
Montessori method uses multiple teacher-conducted assessments to measure these standards. When we
first began, we purchased Montessori Made Manageable, printed by a private company, as a guide for
our grade alignment. We continue to use these required standards as we move toward the state’s
common core standards. Since these standards are taught to teachers in colleges and universities, our
Highly Qualified teachers are familiar with them.

The assessments for the standards consist of observation of students, anecdotal records, behavioral
records, check lists, tests for special education, rubrics, formative tests made by teachers, summative
assessments that are both teacher-constructed and test book driven, and portfolios. These data
collections fit together to form a picture of each individual child.

We monitor standards with weekly lesson plans, which are turned in to the principal. The principal
shares the task with the teachers to make sure these standards are occurring in the classroom and then
reports to the director.

B. Templates.

VI. COMMUNITY
Our community component consists of two parts: A. On-Campus Community and B. Off-Campus

Community.
A. On-Campus Community.

On-campus community consists of 1. Student/Parent Community 2. Teacher Community, and
3. Administration/Staff Community.
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1. Student/Parent Community. Several elements compose our student/parent community. While we
have some solid student/parent relationships, a disturbing number of our students do not live with their
parents, some do not know who one or both of their parents are, and some have parents in jail. Many
students live with physically and financially exhausted grandparents. Last year we had 11 homeless
students. “Homeless” status does not always mean that these students live on the streets. Foster
children are considered “homeless” and some “homeless” students are doubling up with other families.
Headlines of Aug 4, 2011, Bugle state that homeless school populations are growing in the Verde Valley
and its schools at an alarming rate.

Ethnicity, backgrounds, socio-economic status, and recent legal-illegal pressures and fears particularly
vary our student body. Our ethnicity ratio as recorded in SAIS is 3% African-American, 25% Hispanic,
28% Native American, and 44% Caucasian.

Since our goal is to meet individual styles of learning, our students are better able to find instructional
strategies that fit them. We try to give them a strong sense that they are learning important and valid
material. In our constant battle to regulate behavior, students are frequently reminded of Maria
Montessori’s prescription for grace, respect, and dignity. Behavior is an area where a mobile student
population presents challenges. A large number of new students tend to dilute behavior practices that
were in place the previous year. We are currently implementing more consistent and effective behavior
strategies.

In building our student community, we blend individual study initiatives with collaborative initiatives.
We are aware of the correlation between academic achievement and improved behavior. The more we
can get our students to achieve academically, whether individually or collaboratively, the better they feel
about themselves and the better they tend to behave.

Field trips and sports help in building our student community. Riding together on the bus to the library,
finding books individually, hiking together, observing and discussing as a group, all help build the
companionship and sense of cooperation so vital in our campus community. Obstinate and even defiant
students will sometimes join a soccer or basketball or volleyball or touch football team half way through
the season. It takes almost a year for the sense of “community” to come together, displaying a mutual
willingness to follow teacher initiatives. Our Chester Newton elementary students especially enjoy our
springtime “field day,” when we have inter-activities with the Sunnyside middle school students.

An important part of our community is student safety. Students and parents alike are aware of how we
monitor and stop bullying and gang activity promptly and redirect it. In addition to our school, parents
have four other options: home schooling, Camp Verde public schools, American Heritage Charter, and
the private Christian school. Why do parents choose Chester Newton? It is a combination of this safety
feature, our reputations for academic commitment, the curb appeal of our campus, and our sympathetic
approach to ELL students and special education populations. We invest and find teachable moments for
all of our students. The Montessori Method assists each child to strive while discovering their
individuality.

The importance of parent involvement is written in our original charter. We conduct home visits. We
explain and hand out written descriptions of our expectations of parental involvement. The Arizona
Charter School Board 2001 Parent Survey listed CNCMS as # 10 in the state for parental satisfaction—a
high rating for a state with the most charter schools. Current surveys confirm that parents are attracted
by our continuing parental involvement emphasis, our ability to keep their children safe from campus
bullying and gangs, our willingness to listen, our response to learning initiatives with special programs
(Title I, ELL, SPED), our sports, field trips, and concerned, caring and devoted staff,
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We are a Title I Target Assisted school. Students who are identified as being one year behind receive
extra help in class and are pulled out for smaller group instruction. We have meetings with parents for
“parent education,” and we conduct formal after-school tutoring twice a week. With our parent
education, we include health education through “First Things First,” curriculum overviews, potluck
dinners, back-to-school barbecues, science fairs, spelling bees, and a student solar cook-off,

Past students and graduates come back regularly. An impressive percentage has shown promise. Recent
examples are Raven Saunders, who has a fully paid scholarship to study biology at Cornell College in
Iowa; Kaitlin Chapman, who is studying biomedicine at NAU; Isabel Hernandez, who is now a
registered nurse at Kachina Point nursing facility; Melody Olstadt, who is studying education and hopes
to teach at our school. We have also had four male graduates who were working at the Camp Verde
Tai-Kwan-Do studio, teaching during their high school years.

2. Teacher Community. Teachers are the first point of contact for student help. When asked who they
go to for help, our student will almost always say their teacher first.

So far we have been able to offer moderately competitive salaries. We have been active in forming a
Yavapai County Charter School Association that has been able to provide affordable insurance rates for
our teachers.

One of our challenges is finding and keeping quality teachers, especially in a small economically and
socially stressed community like Camp Verde. Three teachers are receiving salaries at a 2004-05 level.
Like all other Arizona public schools, but especially charter schools, we desperately need equalization
money to be restored by the state so we can give raises to our continuing teachers and provide a salary
which is commensurate with the responsibility, dignity, and respect all educators deserve.

Our teachers are trained at national Montessori centers in Houston and New York. We will pay as much
as $15,000 for these training sessions. Our new principal received training in New York this summer.
Teachers sign a promissory note to teach three years when we pay for their training.

All but one new teacher is “highly qualified.” This new teacher will have that credential by Christmas
time. We make sure teachers are placed in positions where they are trained so they can teach to their
strengths.

Even with all these efforts, teachers do move on sometimes. Occasionally we have a teacher take our
training and leave us, or one who simply cannot adapt to the Montessori teaching methodology. On the
other hand, we have had one teacher who had been with us for 12 of our 13-year existence.

3. Administration/Staff Community. Our “user friendly” administration does not happen by accident.
We work hard to keep the administrative response to students consistent with the teacher response.
Students need to know that the administration has the same outlook as teachers, and that both groups
will be as fair as possible in considering student needs and desires.

Like worthy teachers, administrators can be hard to find and keep. As the charter holder, Dr. Chester
has hired and fired her share of principals. Directors must invest a certain trust in their principals that
cannot always be subject to checking,

Succession. Dr. Betty Chester continues as school director. She brings experience in many areas
ranging from child development, teaching, and building and budget expertise. She has successfully
secured a new principal who is planning for long-term commitment.
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Dr. Chester has also “grown our own” with Keven Chester, who is being trained as an associate school
administrator to step into the school directorship. Mr. Chester’s duties are wide-ranging, including
facilities manager, school bus driver, and discipline and truancy specialist. He brings more than 20
years of business experience along with an exceptional understanding for the job.

As part of the succession plan, Mr. Chester is now a charter holder. He is on the board and legally in
place to function as school director along with Dr. Chester. Plans are for Dr. Chester and Dr. D. G.
Campbell to continue their work for at least one more year in partnership with Mr. Chester, and then to
be available for consultation for several years to come.

Other administration/staff members.

Mr. David Schmittendorf also serves multiple functions. Hired last year as our food director,
Schmittendorf is also a worthy and experienced coach as well as specialist in office procedures and
children’s disciplinary matters. For many years, Schmittendorf directed the Special Olympics in
Buffalo, NY, where he retired as a teacher.

Ms. Mary Redmon has been with us since 2004. She exhibits unusual capabilities as she combines
financial expertise with office duties. She has a thorough knowledge of ADE policies, she keeps our
books so well that we have received continuous commendations from our auditors, and she provides
impeccable records keeping. When any questions arise during board meetings, Mary either has the
answers or pulls them out of file cabinets.

Ms. Amy Darwin has been with us since 2006. Among the many job duties Amy holds, she also
functions as grants administrator. She prepares grants, submits them, and follows through with financial
reports. Amy brings many great qualities to her position; she smoothly manages the front office, and
effectively communicates with parents and students. Amy also runs the attendance and has received a
score of no findings from our auditor for several years running.

Both women are exemplary team members. They work far beyond their job descriptions, remaining
after hours when tasks need completing and helping with children at any given moment.

We would like to reiterate here that this year’s AIMS debacle was a fluke, has been fully corrected, and
has prompted us to monitor the entire testing procedure more carefully.

To document our ability to find worthy principals, we will end this section by listing two more
outstanding past principals, Baltazar Lozano and Rebecca Taylor. Baltazar has passed away and Becky
moved back to Yuma.

B. Off-Campus Community.
Our school-related off-campus community consists principally of civic organizations and the town
library.

As community leaders and representatives work with us, our students see who they are and what they
do. Important modeling occurs. When Clint Strempke, for example, served as our facilities person for
10 years, he brought American Legion activities and Shriners to campus, celebrating Veterans and
Memorial Days with color guards, flag ceremonies, and other displays. The Shriners financed our
“Polar Express” train ride to the Grand Canyon at Christmas time. The Lions Club sponsors eye exams
and glasses. Representatives from Kiwanis spend hours reading to our students and providing books to
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be taken home. They award certificates and gifts to students who bring up their grades (BUGS—
bringing up grades—Program). Dictionaries are given annually to each third grade child.

In 2004 we worked out an agreement with the town of Camp Verde to make our 10-acre playing field
available as “Sunnyside Park,” open to the public during non-school daylight hours. This was at no cost
but merely maintenance. After several years, the agreement was discontinued. We now provide the
park at no cost to other schools, Boy Scouts, and others including a Scottish highlanders group. It is
important to us to see this property utilized by the community.

Each of our CNCMS classes goes to the library weekly. We bus them, library personnel do
presentations, our pupils all get library cards and learn to check out reading material. Our director, Dr.
Chester, is a founding member of the Library Endowment Association. Our co-director, Dr. Campbell,
has served as auctioneer for the endowment for the last six years. Our school is working in conjunction
with the library on a $400,000 federal grant application, involving all the workings of the library.






RENEWAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PLAN TEMPLATE

Chester Newton Charter & Montessori School

INDICATOR:" _ X _Math __ Reading DURATION OF THE PLAN?% Begins _August 8, 2011__ to May 24 , 2012_
MEASURE* METRIC* CURRENT End Target For This Plan*®
STATUS®

State standardized
assessment
assessment

and
Student growth percentile (SGP)

Percent (%) of students who score
proficient on the State standardized

(Board staff
will enter info
here)

Meet or demonstrate sufficient progress toward the
level of adequate academic performance as set and
modified periodically by the Board.

STRATEGY I: Provide and implement a curriculum that improves student achievement.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. We will conduct, collaborate and plan | Beginning of | Administration, Agendas from meetings $154.75 &
meetings to assist teachers in aligning school year | teachers and Planning complete wwmhwo:
lessons to math common core standards | 2011-2012 | directors mﬂmn_u_vs
arts

2. Teacher assignments will be aligned Beginning of | Administration and Teacher assignments Paid prior
with their experience and training. school year | teachers

2011-2012.
3. Team teaching with Saxon math Beginning of | Administration and Teacher assignments %“M%m%
curriculum school year | teachers Use of Saxon Math materials (Saxon Math

2011-2012 materials)
4. Provide meaningful and relevant Beginning of | Teachers Lesson plans aligned with state n/a
assignments and homework school year | Administration standards

2011-2012

Conferences and Parent meetings
Parent Signatures

5. Give assignments, review and gather | Beginning of | Administration and Test Results n/a
data, evaluate data and make school year | teachers
adjustments 2011-2012 Revised Lesson plans
6. Administer AIMS math -computer School year | Classroom teacher Results of AIMS mm_m%%mmu

Approved 11/19/2010






6. Administer AIMS math -computer School year | Classroom teacher | Results of AIMS W_m_,w%,mma
assessment 2011-2012 | Computer teacher Immediate feedback to teachers Pro)
Data evaluation
7. Implement Buckle Down math Beginning Classroom teacher | Chapter test results $376.69
(Buckle Down
booklets school year Analyze teacher created workbooks)
2011-2012 assessments
8. Utilize Pre-tests and Post-tests, Beginning Classroom teacher Research-based pre/post tests n/a
gather diagnostic data school year results analyzed
2011-2012
9. We will use Galileo to determine math | Beginning Classroom teacher | Student reports n/a
proficiency levels school year | Computer teacher Immediate feedback available
2012-2012
10. Analyze student portfolios September | Classroom teacher Student scores n/a
2011-May Administration Student work completed
2012

STRATEGY II: Develop and implement a
instruction.

plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic Standards into

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. Teacher will develop lesson plans that | Beginning Teachers Lesson plans n/a
directly relate to common core standards | school year | Administrators Turned into principal weekly
for mathematics. 2011-2012
2. Teachers will implement the lesson Beginning | Administrators and | Classroom observations Strategy1 #3
plans school year | teachers
2011-2012 Administration review
3. Evaluate lessons and adjust lessons Beginning Administration and Revised lesson plans Strategy1 #1
as necessary School year | teachers Re-teaching
2011-2012 Adjust using RTI
Evaluations complete
4. Re-evaluate quarterly lessons and Beginning Administration and Revised lesson plans
adjust School year | teachers Increased scores n/a
2011-2012
5. Implement Buckle Down booklets Beginning Classroom teacher | Purchase order, pre/post test Strategy1 #7
school year throughout booklet, chapter tests
2011-2012

Approved 11/19/2010






6. Implement Saxon Math curriculum Beginning Classroom teacher Lesson plans aligned to common Strategy1 #3
school year core standards and Saxon math
2011-2012 materials provided by teachers

7. Montessori math; demonstrated and | Beginning Classroom teacher | Check lists mm%%oﬂ i

observed school year Observations oy
2011-2012 Outcome scores improved

STRATEGY lll: Develop and implement

a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. Lessons will be created that reflect School year | Teachers Reviewing of lesson plans n/a
uses of math curriculum aligned to 2011-2012 | Administrators Administration check list of receipt of
common core math standards lesson plans
2. Conduct assessments and review data | School year | Teachers Scores from assessments n/a
weekly 2011-2012 Revised plans
3. Evaluate data and adjust lessons as School year | Administrators Improved scores n/a
necessary 2011-2012 | Teachers Data scores/graphs
4. Expand utilization of AIMS testing to School year | Classroom teacher | Lesson plans aligned and adjusted Strategy1 #6
inform decision making 2011-2012 based on resuilts
5. Reinforce understanding, creation School year | Administrators Teacher reports
and analysis of formative and summative | 2011-2012 | Classroom teacher Chapter tests n/a
assessments Student portfolios
6. Use Galileo for math strategies and School year | Classroom teacher | Student scores n/a
reinforcement skills 2011-2012 Computer teacher Data graphs

Title 1 teacher

STRATEGY IV: Develop and implement a professional develo

pment plan that supports effective implementation of the

curriculum.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. Teachers will have training including; | School year | Administration and | Teacher files and documents Paid prior
Montessori, AIMS and math content area | 2011-2012 | teachers Professional development agendas

Approved 11/19/2010






standards and RTI

2.Assign teachers to their professional Beginning Administration Classroom assignment n/a
training school year Teacher effectiveness
2011-2012
3. Provide relevant in-service training Beginning Administration Teacher surveys In-service
monthly school year Teacher implementation cost
2011-2012 PD agendas
Certification of completion of PD
hours
4.Evaluation and observation of teachers | School year | Administration Observation notes n/a
Evaluation of principal and director 2011-2012 Teacher reviews
Teacher self-review
Teacher check-lists
5. Attend workshops and share School year | Administration Certificates of PD hours estimated
information and newly learned strategies | 2011-2012 | Teachers Sign-in sheets
with colleagues
Strategy V: Develop and implement intervention and excelled learning.
Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. Identify individual students with special | Beginning Administration Students needs identified n/a
needs through review of data & school year | Special Education RTI designed strategies
observation 2011-2012 | Teacher Lesson implementation
Teacher
2. Align available material to students’ Beginning Administration Lesson plans Paid prior
needs; school year | Special Education | Materials being used Sitringyile?
Saxon math 2011-2012 | teachers Scores of these students rise
Montessori math Teacher
Adjusted/Supplemental lessons
3. Include parents with the plan and their | School year | Administration Parent conferences with IEP n/a
child's needs and IEP 2011-2012 | Teacher development
Parent Satisfaction surveys
4. Evaluate and adjust lessons Beginning Teacher Revised lesson plans n/a
necessary school year Charts or graphs of student scores
2011-2012 Improved scores

Approved 11/19/2010






5. Identify students who are excelling Beginning Administration Revised lesson plans n/a
and plan according, upon data review school year | Teacher Intervention grouping
2011-2012 RTI strategies
6. Hold student portfolio/folder meetings | Beginning Administration Teacher review write ups n/a
with colleagues school year | Teachers Student plans written
2011-2012 Portfolios complete
7. Analyze results of Galileo testing School year | Teachers Scores rising n/a
2011-2012 Interventions being implemented
Challenges being implemented
Lesson plans adjusted
8. Analyze checklists from Montessori School year | Teachers Adjusted lesson plans n/a
math curriculums 2011-2012 Student scores
Student demonstrations
Student observation check-lists
9. Use of RTI strategies for Tutoring School year | Teachers Adjusted lessons $1000.00 Title
curriculum 2011-2012 Student scores Hiulering
Student assistance/tutoring available

Using the information entered in the “Budget” columns above, please provide a budget total that incorporates all strategies and action
steps for each year of the performance management plan’s implementation. For “Year 1”, please specify the fiscal year (e.g., 2011).
The charter holder may add years, as necessary.

Year 1: Budget Total __$3453.61
Year 2: Budget Total _ $3856.00
Year 3: Budget Total __$4,797.00

Fiscal Year __2011/2012

Notes:

* Provided by ASBCS staff

1 Academic area to be addressed for improvement

2 Duration of the plan must align with the timeline presented in the Action Steps

3 Refer to Terms to Know in the Renewal Application Instructions

4 Repeat these action steps as necessary to include the appropriate number of steps to accomplish the strategy

Approved 11/19/2010







RENEWAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PLAN TEMPLATE

Chester Newton Charter & Montessori School

INDICATOR:" _ Math __X_Reading DURATION OF THE PLAN? Begins _August 8, 2011__ to May 24, 2012_ _
MEASURE* METRIC* CURRENT End Target For This Plan**
STATUS*

State standardized
assessment
assessment

and

Percent (%) of students who score
proficient on the State standardized

Student growth percentile (SGP)

(Board staff
will enter info
here)

Meet or demonstrate sufficient progress toward the
level of adequate academic performance as set and

modified periodically by the Board.

STRATEGY I: Provide and implement a curriculum that improves student achievement.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. We will conduct, collaborate and plan | Beginning of | Administration, Agendas from meetings m%mu.m» "
meetings to assist teachers in aligning school year | teachers and Planning complete Mmmmmmawﬂﬁm
lessons to common core standards. 2011-2012 | directors $3,175.00
(Open Court
materials)
2. Teacher assignments will be aligned Beginning of | Administration and Teacher assignments ﬂwﬁ_w.ﬁ
with their experience and training. school year | teachers o
2011-2012. +$228.06 1 of
Aimsweb-for
reading)
3. Team teaching with Montessori Beginning of | Administration and Teacher assignments Paid prior
curriculum and standards. school year | teachers
2011-2012
4. We will implement common core Beginning of | Teachers Lesson plans $357.84
. . 5 (Open Court
standards, provide parents information school year decodables,
and send home our reading curriculum 2011-2012 Conferences and Parent meetings homework)
materials as needed for homework.
5. Give assignments, review and gather | Beginning of | Administration and Test Results $174.65 +
$62.37
data, evaluate data and make school year | teachers (Cemmun Gors
adjustments 2011-2012 Revised Lesson plans Strategies Flip
Charts)

&

Approved 11/19/2010






&

$153.21

(“Rewards”

materials)
6. Review data from DIBELS, given School year | Title 1 teacher Teacher data graphs .
quarterly 2011-2012 | Classroom teacher | Student portfolios Section 1 #2

Administration

Test results

STRATEGY lI: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic Standards into

instruction.
Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. Teacher will develop lesson plans that | Beginning Teachers Lesson plans n/a
directly relate to content standards; school year
including writing and literature. 2011-2012
2. Teachers will implement the lesson Beginning | Administrators and Classroom observations n/a
plans school year | teachers
2011-2012 Administration review
3. Evaluate lessons and adjust lessons Beginning Administration and Revised lesson plans n/a
as necessary School year | teachers Re-teaching
2011-2012 Evaluations complete
4. Re-evaluate quarterly lessons and Beginning Administration and Revised lesson plans
adjust School year | teachers Increased scores n/a
2011-2012
5. Review of computer opportunities & Beginning Administration and Computer skills driven by data n/a
student achievement school year | teachers collection
DIBELS 2011-2012 Student graphs according to
Aimsweb standards
Lexia Student improved and excelling
Galileo scores
6. Develop and implement student Beginning Teachers Data scores $1000.00 Title
tutoring school year Student portfolios Mhﬁmmﬁ 8
2011-2012 Student progress made

Approved 11/19/2010






7. Student portfolios created School year | Teachers Student work evidence n/a
2011-2012
8. Plan curriculum using RTI strategies | School year | Teachers Teacher lesson plans Strategy 1#1
2011-2012 Teacher check lists
9. Student achievement challenges School year | Administration Spelling Bee n/a
2011-2012 | Teachers Art Fair and exhibit
Science Fair
Geography Bee
Gardening club
Music opportunities
STRATEGY lll: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency.
Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. Lessons will be created that reflect School year | Teachers Reviewing of lesson plans Mﬂwmmi
uses of;, Open Court, Lexia, DIBELS, 2011-2012 i
AimsWeb and Montessori lessons
2. Conduct assessments and review data | School year | Teachers Scores from assessments n/a
weekly 2011-2012 Revised plans
3. Evaluate data and adjust lessons as School year | Administrators Improved scores n/a
necessary 2011-2012 | Teachers Data scores/graphs
4. Evaluate DIBELS data School year | Teachers Data scores/graphs Strategy 1#2
2011-2012 Student improved scores in reading
Teacher gradebooks
DIBELS student booklets
5. Evaluate Lexia data School year | Teachers Data scores/graphs n/a
2011-2012 Student gradebook scores

Improved scores

Approved 11/19/2010






6. Scope and Sequence-yearly Beginning Teachers and Teacher files and documents n/a
alignment according to standards School year | Administration
2011-2012
7. Data Monitoring Reports School year | Administrators Improved scores n/a
2011-2012 | Teachers Data scores/graphs
Reports
Student portfolios
8. Weekly data meetings School year | Administration Data scores/graphs n/a
2011-2012 | Teachers Student improved scores in reading

Teacher gradebooks
DIBELS student booklets
Weekly adgendas

STRATEGY IV: Develop and implement a professional development plan that supports effective implementation of the

curriculum.
Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget

1. Teachers will have training including; School year | Administration and Teacher files and documents Training fees
Montessori, Aims, SEI certification, 2011-2012 | teachers Shipahl
content area standards, DIBELS, Galileo
and Lexia
2.Assign teachers to their professional Beginning Administration Classroom assignment n/a
training school year Teacher effectiveness

2011-2012
3. Provide relevant in-service training Beginning Administration Teacher surveys n/a
monthly school year Teacher implementation

2011-2012 PD agendas
4.Evaluation and observation of teachers | School year | Administration Observation notes n/a

2011-2012 Teacher reviews

Teacher walk-through notes

5. Computer lab available with state School year | Teachers Student data Strategy 1 #2
standards programs 2011-2012 Use of lab hours

Strategy V: Develop and implement intervention and excelled learning.

Action Steps °

Timeline

| Responsible Party

Evidence of Meeting Action Steps

Budget |

Approved 11/19/2010





1. Identify individual students with special | Beginning Administration Students needs identified n/a
needs through review of data school year | Special Education RTI designed strategies
2011-2012 | Teacher Lesson implementation
Teacher
2. Align available material to students Beginning Administration Lesson plans n/a
needs school year | Special Education Materials being used
Sopris for ELL 2011-2012 | teachers Scores of these students rise
Language for Learning for ELLs Teacher
Open Court Interventions
DOLCH sight words
Adjusted/Supplemental lessons
3. Include parents with the plan and their | School year | Administration Parent conferences n/a
child’s needs 2011-2012 | Teacher Parent Satisfaction surveys
4. Evaluate and adjust as necessary Beginning Teacher Revised lesson plans n/a
school year Improved scores
2011-2012
5. ldentify students who are excelling Beginning Administration Revised lesson plans
and plan according, upon data review school year | Teacher Intervention grouping n/a
2011-2012 RTI strategies
6. Develop and implement student Beginning Teachers Data scores n/a
tutoring school year Student portfolios
2011-2012 Student progress made
7. Student portfolios created School year | Teachers Student work evidence n/a
2011-2012
8. RTI strategies School year | Teachers Teacher lesson plans
2011-2012 Teacher check lists Strategy 1#5
9. Student achievement challenges School year | Administration Spelling Bee n/a
2011-2012 | Teachers Art Fair and exhibit
Science Fair
Geography Bee
Gardening club
Music opportunities
10. Develop and implement tutoring School year | Teachers Time cards Strategy 2 #6
2011-2012 | Administrators Teacher lesson plans

Approved 11/19/2010






Evidence of student work
11. Provide Outsourced Speech Therapy | School year | Administrators Student speech fluency $4400.00
Services 2011-2012 | Certified Speech Student speech comprehension
Therapist Student oral speech

Using the information entered in the “Budget” columns above, please provide a budget total that incorporates all strategies and action
steps for each year of the performance management plan’s implementation. For “Year 1", please specify the fiscal year (e.g., 2011).
The charter holder may add years, as necessary.

Year 1: Budget Total __$12,260.00 Fiscal Year ___2011/2012
Year 2: Budget Total __$15,383.00
Year 3: Budget Total __$16,206.00

Notes:

* Provided by ASBCS staff

1 Academic area to be addressed for improvement

2 Duration of the plan must align with the timeline presented in the Action Steps

3 Refer to Terms to Know in the Renewal Application Instructions

4 Repeat these action steps as necessary to include the appropriate number of steps to accomplish the strategy

Approved 11/19/2010
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I. Documentation of Academic Oversight.

This section contains minutes, reports, agendas, and an explanation of this past year’s
principal replacement. Minutes of our school board meetings for the past year are
attached, as are last year’s principal reports. As a policy-making body, our school board
did not address grades. Nor do grades appear in any reports from our former principal,
Dr. Shirley Sullivan. Dr. Sullivan stated that she was recording and documenting grades
in another format. After she left, we discovered that our former principal left no
documentation of any academic monitoring. The specific documentation of grade
progress, however, appears in the informal notes that our present principal took last year
when she was serving as our ELL teacher and overseer of testing (DIBELS and NWEA).
Our current academic oversight plan and our principal replacement situation are listed
below as A. Current Academic Oversight Plan and B. Former Principal Difficulties /
Present Principal Promise. C. Board Meeting Minutes / Agendas / Principal Reports
Attachments.

A. Current Academic Oversight Plan.

In the 2009-2010 school year CNCMS was placed in the “school improvement” category.
During this year we collected data regarding goals, lesson plans, assessments, and
assessment results. We excelled and became a “Performing” school. It was at this time
that our former principal slacked off in supervision and teachers did not keep up their
standards.

Last year, Dr. Betty Chester and the academic coach led teachers into developing a scope
and sequence curriculum guide. This guide is now being applied. The scope lays out
curriculum by month for a year. The subjects are correlated to the Arizona State
Common Core Standards and the Montessori plan. Sequence is determined by grade





level and by children’s needs. Though it is too early in this academic year for Galileo test
results, indications from our benchmark data look promising. We are also performing
teacher evaluations that will include looking for student achievement and academic
success.

This year’s work includes other tools to assist teachers in developing lesson plans and
following through with assessments. Professional development has been restored. Each
week the current principal, Ms. Donovan, is evaluating lesson plans for content,
standards, effectiveness, progress monitoring, and assessments. She is offering the
teachers more support in areas like SEI strategies, RTI, common core planning, ELL and
Title 1 assistance, computer assessments, and progress monitoring. She is also
emphasizing the need for students to be aware of their own grades as well as teachers to
be more complete and constructive (at least one positive comment) in their corrections of
student work.

Last year teachers were hesitant to come to the principal’s office. They were, of course,
also hesitant to mention that problem. This year’s administration has worked hard to
make teachers feel more welcome to come in and discuss alternative teaching strategies,
progress, and possible peer instruction. Work on scope and sequence and quarterly
assessments is going much better than it did last year.

Last years weekly meetings with principal and teachers became sidetracked. Less and
less emphasis was put on student achievement. The principal began to push agenda items
aside and talk about her own interests regarding establishing another school.

B. Former Principal Difficulties / Present Principal Promise.

Former Principal Difficulties. We feel it is appropriate at this point in our charter
renewal application to explain what happened with our 2011 AIMS testing process and
what is being done to correct the situation. Our most recent past principal difficulty
evolved as our former principal, Dr. Shirley Sullivan, tried to impose her own agenda on
school matters. Her agenda was a growing concern that the school director, Dr. Betty
Chester, did not see coming.

On the Monday following AIMS testing, April 19, 2011, DeAnna Rowe, Director of the
State Board for Charter Schools, and Irene Hunting, Director of State Test
Administration, Assessment Section, visited our campus as a follow-up to reports of
irregularities in the testing procedure. Unknown to Dr. Chester, prior to testing, our
principal, Dr. Shirley Sullivan had made some remarks during a meeting she called that
compromised the integrity of our entire testing procedure. Dr. Sullivan suggested that
teachers place “smart” students next to lower performing students so the lower
performing students could copy answers. This process, which necessarily called for
teachers to be sure both students would be taking the same tests, was suggested and
encouraged by Dr. Sullivan. The administration had no idea of this planning, and the
teachers were disturbed by it. Inevitably, word got out, and most of our AIMS tests were
confiscated and our AIMS scores invalidated for the 2010-2011 school year.





As soon as the matter was disclosed, the administration followed up with a group
questionnaire asking teachers exactly what they heard during the principal’s meeting and
if any of them followed Dr. Sullivan’s instructions. Although the questionnaires and our
further investigations indicate that the actual giving of the tests was not compromised, we
feel that the invalidation of the AIMS tests was justified.

The following weekend, as a result of a short meeting between Dr. Chester and Dr.
Sullivan, Dr. Sullivan was asked to resign. Dr. Chester believed that the situation
warranted this resignation request. On April 21, 2011, Dr. Chester sent Ms. Rowe a letter
explaining our actions and declaring Dr. Sullivan’s resignation. Dr. Chester offered at
that time to present the results of the investigations we conducted, including the survey
questions.

We have since conducted further investigating and believe we can see a trail of
deterioration in Dr. Sullivan’s performance that was not visible at the time. This
investigative information is available to any charter or state school personnel who wish to
review it, but we are not including it here. We feel that our conclusions as to how Dr.
Sullivan came to display such unprofessional behavior are related to her personal agenda
and were no longer relevant to the operation of our school.

We sent a letter to parents informing them of the situation. We told them that, while the
matter was quite serious for the school itself, their children’s education was not
invalidated in any way, and kindergarten graduation and grade 1% — 5™ promotions would
proceed as scheduled. We also outlined our plan, as we have done in this application, for
fixing the problem. Our 2012 AIMS testing process will be much more closely guarded.
Training will be given to all who test, and rules followed and enforced. This letter also
urged parents to pay more attention to homework and asked them to sign for completed
homework returned to school. We are sending a follow-up letter asking parents to
encourage their children to work harder on homework, respect their teachers, and follow
school rules.

During the last five years, there was a noticeable drop in test scores. Chester Newton
Charter and Montessori School was rated Performing Plus during the 2004-2005 school
year. We worked for more accountability from our principal Dr. Shirley Sullivan and
thought we were getting it. As Dr. Chester tried to believe in what her principal was
saying, she noticed that documentation became scattered and scores continued to drop.
Dr. Sullivan showed only bits and pieces of information. We began to suspect that Dr.
Sullivan was showing a small sample as a decoy that did not represent thorough student
performance. Gradually Dr. Sullivan’s neglect forced her to move toward a kind of
cover-up where she tried to impose her own standards of curriculum that did not correlate
with the Montessori curriculum. Her methods for group (faculty and staff) control
became detrimental. Teachers were reluctant to talk to her. She would hide behind her
computer in a flurry of activity. We now suspect that much of her computer activity
involved a personal “Performing Arts” project that she described from time to time and
that had no connection with our school.





The big picture began to take focus. As more and more of Dr. Sullivan’s activity yielded
less and less student progress, we knew something was askew. Only toward the end of
last year did teachers begin to report communication difficulties to the school director.

Present Principal Promise. Months before the AIMS testing, Dr. Chester and Dr.
Sullivan had several discussions about Dr. Sullivan’s winding down her principal’s
position, possibly within the next year. Fortunately, Dr. Chester had already hired
Loretta Donovan, as an academic coach and ELL teacher. Bringing with her a principal’s
certificate, Ms. Donovan was able to step into the principal’s position that next Monday
without missing a day of school. Ms. Donovan’s certificate covers elementary and early
childhood; she has her SEI endorsement, along with a special education certificate. She
has also been a state trainer for DIBELS, SEI, and RTL

Several reassurances are in place that our new principal will do a better job with student
assessment. The new principal’s commitment, the director’s increased observation of
principal’s performance, with our new principal’s full consent, offer reassurance that we
have successfully resolved our former “principal” difficulties. She welcomes this
observation and wants to be a part of it. The new principal’s role in communicating to
teachers will directly impact student progress.

A revised student evaluation plan has been put into place. Dr. Chester and Mr. Keven
Chester will review the principal’s weekly teacher meeting agendas on Thursday (we
operate a 4-day week). A conference will then be held the following Monday morning to
review student progress as reflected in the agendas. Is the principal successfully leading
the teachers to teach effectively and evaluate accurately? Do the teachers know that the
principal knows when a student’s performance is at risk? They will check the DIBELS,
Galileo reports, Saxon Math, and Open Court reading assessments, along with daily
scores and comments on students, turned in with lesson plans.

In the past, teacher-principal communication broke down. With Dr. Chester and Mr.
Keven Chester now making sure the principal specifically communicates each student’s
track to each teacher on a weekly basis, the teacher-principal communication gap, and the
resulting gap caused in student progress, is being repaired.

Both teaching staff and administration will evaluate the principal annually. Parents are
going to evaluate teachers and administration once a year.

C. Attachments
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II. FINANCIAL NARRATIVE

Our audits have been exemplary for many years. We have had no non-compliance
issues, and any problems were corrected promptly. Complements continued by
individual auditors, who gave us high marks compared to a large number of other
schools. Administration is shared between Chester Newton and Sunnyside Charter and
Montessori Schools.

State cutbacks continue to cause stress and desperation adjustments to our operations.
We’ve had to adjust by eliminating important expenditures (like everyone else in
education), combining job responsibilities, and cutting back on learning materials and





supplies. One of our administrators also drives one of our school busses. Audits for the
last several years have met all compliance requirements.

In spite of state cutbacks, our ability to find grant support has allowed us to continue
operation. This support comes from a combination of small grants, entitlements,
foundations, and loan modification. We have cut back on supplies, materials, services,
and field trips. By providing aides, we manage our Montessori multi-age format, which
allows us to still teach adequately with fewer teachers. Our food administrator also
works as our coach, scheduling as well as directing games. One of our Sunnyside middle
school teachers is a math specialist who also helps CNCMS students through Title I.
Reciprocally, our CNCMS Title I reading teacher provides services to identified
Sunnyside students who are in need of extra assistance. Our special education teacher has
a small caseload of 5-8 students a year, and also serves as a classroom teacher. This year
we have added a Title 1 teacher who also services as our ELL teacher and is our testing
specialist. New teacher salaries have been at the 2004/2005 levels. Three teachers are at
this level. Three of our six teachers have not had a raise for three years. Though we are
figuring a 3% increase for the year 2012/2013, with a projected ADM of 89 students. In
the year 2013/2014 we project ADM of 116 students. With this student projection of 116
ADM students, we will be adding another teacher and class. Also during the 2013/2014
year there will be a 3% pay increase. After considerable searching, we have found a bank
that has arranged a loan modification for the Chester-Campbell LLC allowing for a
reduction in the school’s rent.

A. Business Performance Plan Budget Template...attachment
B. 2009 and 2010 Audit Reports.......cccccevveerenenne attachment

IIl. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

We provide authentic, effective teacher development opportunities. Our data collection
and our student assessment scores drive these opportunities. One Friday a month is set
aside for workshops and sharing of teaching experiences. We also hold teacher meetings
each Thursday for student improvement. Data meetings are held mid-week.

A few of our professional development opportunities are a repeat each year but we align
and adjust accordingly, as scores are analyzed from the prior school year. Our workshops
have or may consist of: AIMS, DIBELS, Title 1, Parent classes, Mentoring, Student Peer
mentoring, Data analysis, Common Core Standards, Curriculum, Health, Student
Achievement, Rubrics for student scores, Montessori instruction, Special Education,
Technology, Galileo, Student portfolios, tutoring, Response to Intervention, IEPs, new
Federal and State mandates, etc.

We also provide opportunities for our teaching staff and administrators to attend
professional development outside of our campus realm. We are known to encourage our
teachers to go beyond their job assignments and acquire knowledge to challenge each of
their potentials.





While some may view professional development as simply "a waste of time" we assure
that our opportunities are meaningful, relevant and allow us to pre-test and post-test our
students after we have implemented new education strategies or coursework.

1Iv. CAMPUS TECHNOLOGY

During the last year we have been updating and replacing parts of our computer systems.
We found that having student computers and printers in each classroom was too difficult
for teachers to monitor and too costly to maintain. Students were doing minor damage to
computers so they would not have to do lessons, and printers were used excessively. In
addition, our technology contractor was not keeping us updated with new programs and
was operating in emergency maintenance mode only. We had similar issues with our
internet service provider.

To resolve these issues we first changed our computer service company and our internet
carriers. Then we removed all student computers from the classrooms and set up a
computer lab. We started off the lab with student testing from NWEA and found that
there were major issues with our computers. A new multi-seat system was purchased and
a permanent lab has been set up.

A new firewall system with programmable web-site blocking, and new server has been
added to handle new computers and on-line traffic.

We are members of the Yavapai Technology Consortium, a county grant that helps with
technology needs in schools, and we are looking forward to all it has to offer. Asa
member, we will have access to broadband services. This will increase our Internet
reliability and speed capability. It will allow us to be able to connect with other schools
and libraries.

V. PHYSICAL PLANT

We are dividing our psychical plant presentation into A. Buildings, B. Grounds, and
C. Transportation.

A. Buildings. We have made a conscious effort to present a more home-like appearance
for CNCMS. We have purchased two separate older homesteads complete with barns
and other buildings like pump houses and chicken houses. Two of the larger structures
have been remodeled into classrooms. Our new building contains our dining facility, our
g g classroom, and our middle school.

B. Grounds. Although we are located within town limits of the town of Camp Verde,
our setting is basically rural. Open fields are on either side and the Verde River runs
along the far end. Our property allows for gardening. We also keep animals like rabbits
and chickens.





The grounds consist of a 10-acre field with Verde River frontage and a two-acre rise of
land above the field, where our buildings stand. Our river frontage is a wild riparian area
that serves as a natural study area. The field contains two soccer/football fields and two
ball diamonds. We also have an outside basketball court and a fully equipped
playground.

For a 10-year period, we worked with the city to make our field available to the public
after school hours. It was named “Sunnyside Park.” We did not ask for any money but
simply requested that the field be maintained. The field was always busy with families or
local teams. Two years ago the city decided that the maintenance was too expensive, and
the field now sits mostly empty during after-school hours.

C. Transportation. When we began our charter, West’s Education Code listed a
formula that allowed Chester Newton to acquire about $60,000 yearly of state money for
transportation. Since many families in Camp Verde cannot afford to drive their children
to school, we took advantage of this educational perk and bought three used school
busses. The only problem was that the Arizona legislature soon dried up this charter
school transportation money, leaving us to pay for the busses, maintenance, drivers, and
operation out of our school budget with no state aid or reimbursement. Our busses meet
necessary needs of many of our families.

VL. FUTURE PLANS

Our future needs emphasize student/teacher needs. We need to refocus on academics
while we continue teaching via the Montessori method. A short list of future goals is:

--Gain an “A” status label in performance.

--Retain our trained Montessori teachers.

--Assist teachers who have not gone through traditional methods of university training to
understand the demands of accountability. Also, to remind teachers who have shown
capability of being effective teachers that they are treasured and needed by their students.
--Begin more Effective Teacher evaluation as proposed by ADE (20/11/12).

--Begin Effective Principal evaluation (20/11/12).

--Continue looking for solar power grants.

--Continue to research for grants that are a match for our school.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School
Camp Verde, Arizona

I have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School
as of June 30, 2009, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit.

Iconducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School as of June 30, 2009 and the results of its operations, changes in net
assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

In accordance with United States Government Auditing Standards, | have also issued a report dated October 20, 2009,
on my consideration of Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School’s internal control over financial reporting and
my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with United States Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of my audit.

0_ YMM'(,PA,Q("

Joel D. Huber, CPA, P.C.
October 20, 2009





CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2009

Assets:
Current Assets
Cash $
Accounts receivable

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Property, furniture, and equipment (net)
Prepaids
Total Assets $
Liabilities and net assets:
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Net Assets and Liabilities $

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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35,135
15,843

50,978
10,685
5,785

67,448

29,766

29,766

29,766

37,682

37,682

67,448





CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Revenues, Gains, and Other Support:
State equalization assistance $ 529390  $ 0 $ 529390
Other grants and State funding 184,306 184,306
Donations and contributions 2,127 2,127
Miscellaneous 2,572 2,572
Total Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 718,395 0 718,395
Expenses and Losses:
Program services
Instruction and operations 607,340 607,340
Supporting services
Administration 166,813 166,813
Total Expenses 774,153 0 774,153
Change in Net Assets (55,758) (55,758)
Net Assets at beginning of year 93,440 14,946
Net Assets at end of year $ 37,682 $ 0 $ (40,812)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $ (55,758)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 11,929
Increase in accounts receivable (6,317)
Decrease in prepaids 5,173
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,550
Net cash used by operating activities (43,423)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, furniture, and equipment (2,586)

Net cash used by investing activities (2,586)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Principal payments on note payable (2,100

Net cash used by financing activities (2,100)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (48,109)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 83,244
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 35,135

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest Paid
Income Taxes Paid

w5 o
oo

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School is an Arizona not-for-profit corporation organized in 1997.
The Arizona Charter Schools are intended to provide additional academic choices for parents and students
that will improve pupil achievement. Charter school statutes support flexibility and innovation in key areas
of operations and organizational structures, including scheduling, curriculum. and instructional

methodologies.

The School is exempt from Federal and Arizona income taxes on its exempt function income under Section
501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The School does not receive any non-exempt income and is not a

private foundation.
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Assets, liabilities, support, revenue and expenses are recognized using the accrual basis of

accounting.

RECOGNITION OF DONOR RESTRICTED SUPPORT
Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the

restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor-
restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land, buildings, and improvements with a cost of $3,000 or more and vehicles, furniture and
equipment with both a cost of $300 or more and an estimated life of one year or more are capitalized.
Assets are stated at cost or fair market value at date of gift if contributed. Donations of property and
equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair values. Such donations are reported as
unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to
acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations
regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the School reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The
School reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time.
Depreciation of vehicles, furniture and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets, ranging from 3 to 10 years. Buildings and
improvements are amortized over 15 to 20 years.

DONATIONS
Donated services are recognized only if the services received either create or enhance nonfinancial

assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would
typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. A number of volunteers have made
contributions of their time to the School to help with programs, provide clerical support, and assist
with general maintenance. The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financial
statements since it does not meet the recognition criteria.





CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of certain contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH EQUIVALENTS
The School considers all monetary instruments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash

equivalents. As of June 30, 2009, there were no cash equivalents.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The School places its cash with high quality credit institutions. At times, such cash may be in excess

of FDIC insurance limits.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following classes of property and equipment are reflected in the accompanying financial statements at
June 30, 2009:

Land and improvements $ 10,074
Leasehold improvements 53,387
Furniture and equipment 127,329
190,790
Less accumulated depreciation (180,105)
$ 10,685

NOTE 4 - OBLIGATIONS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
The School leases facilities under the terms of an operating lease which expires on August 1, 2011. The lease
is with a member of the Board of Directors (Note 9). Lease terms are 120 months. Total lease expenses for
the year ended June 30, 2009 were $64,164.

Future minimum lease payments under the operating lease as of June 30, 2009 are:

Year ending June 30:
2010 $ 64,164
2011 64,164
2012 10,694
2013 0
2014 0
2015 and thereafter 0
Total minimum lease $ 139,022
payments





CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 5 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School receives a substantial amount of its support from contracts
with and grants from governmental bodies. A significant reduction in the level of support from these sources
may have a material effect on the School’s continuing operations.

NOTE 6 - COMPLIANCE

The School’s compliance with certain laws and regulations is subject to review by the State of Arizona, Office
of the Auditor General, and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools. These reviews could result in a

reduction of state equalization assistance.

NOTE 7 - LITIGATION

The School is contingently liable for claims and judgments resulting from lawsuits incidental to normal
operations. In the opinion of the School’s management, adverse decisions that might result, to the extent not
covered by insurance, would not have a material effect on the financial statements. No provision has been
made in the financial statements for possible losses of this nature.

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description — Effective July 1, 1999, the School contributes to a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Arizona State Retirement System. Benefits are established by state
statute and generally provide retirement, death, long-term disability, survivor, and health insurance premium
benefits. The System is governed by the Arizona State Retirement System Board according to the provisions
of AR.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2. The System issues a comprehensive annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The most recent report may be
obtained by writing the System, 3300 North Central Avenue, PO Box 33910, Phoenix, AZ 85067-3910 or by
calling

(602) 240-2000 or (800) 621-3778.

Funding Policy — The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan members’ and the
School’s contribution rate. The School’s contributions to the System for the year ended June 30, 2009 was
$35,410.

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
The following transactions occurred between the School and members of its Board of Directors:
The School leased facilities from a member of its Board of Directors (Note 4). Rent paid totaled

$64,164 for the year ended June 30, 2009. Commitments under the lease agreement total $139,022
as of June 30, 2009.
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Certified Public Accountant
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Mesa, Arizona 85204 Accountants
PHONE: (480) 503-9200
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School
Camp Verde, Arizona

I'have audited the financial statements of Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, and have issued my report thereon dated October 20, 2009. I conducted my audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing my audit, I considered Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School’s internal control

over financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Chester-Newton
Charter and Montessori School’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
organization’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
organization’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
organization’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the
organization’s internal control.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
I consider to be a material weakness, as described above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed
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no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under United States Government Auditing Standards

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of Directors, Management, federal awarding agencies,
and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

W@ 7/4_64,('417,4,?(“

oel D. Huber, CPA, P.C.
October 20, 2009

Joel D. Huber, CPA, P.C.

Certified Public Accountant
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Joel D. Huber, CPA, P.C.

Certified Public Accountant

Member of the American

3048 East. Baseline Road, Suite 116 Institute of Certified Public
Mesa, Arizona 85204 "
Accounlants
PHONE: (480) 503-9200
FAX: (866) 680-5863 Member of the Arizona

Saciely of CPA’s

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School
Camp Verde, Arizona

[ have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School
as of June 30, 2010, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiring Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. 1 believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori Schiool as of June 30, 2010 and the results of its operations, changes in net
assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States.

In accordance with United States Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued a report dated October 20, 2010,
on my consideration of Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School’s internal control over financial reporting and
my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with United States Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of my audit.

O_ 7W'¢PA,P.C\

Joel D. Huber, CPA, P.C.
October 20, 2010





CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2010

Assets:

Current Assets
Cash
Accounts receivable

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Property, furniture, and equipment (net)

Total Assets
Liabilities and net assets:
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Net Assets and Liabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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$ 67,284
11,361

78,645

15,579

$ 94,224

5 32,634

32,634

32,634

61,590

61,590

$ 94,224

\





CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Revenues, Gains, and Other Support:
State equalizalion assistance $ 360,574 $ 0 $ 360,574
Other grants and State funding 341,907 341,907
Donalions and contributions 1,648 1,648
Miscellaneous 2,232 2,232
Total Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 706,361 0 706,361
Expenses and Losses:
Program services
Instruction and operations 558,779 558,779
Supporting services
Administration 123,674 123,674
Total Expenses 682,453 0 682,453
Change in Net Assels 23,908 23,908
Net Assets at beginning of year 37,682 37,682
Net Assets at end of year $ 61,590 $ 0 $ 61,590

See accompanying notes o the financial statements
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CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $ 23,908
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 10,669
Decrease in accounts receivable 4,482
Decrease in prepaids 5,785
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,868
Net cash provided by operating activities 47,712

Cash flows from investing activities:

Additions to property, furniture, and equipment (15,563)

Net cash used by investing activities (15,563)

Cash flows from financing activities: 0
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 32,149
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 35,135
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 67,284

Supplemental disclosures of cash [low information:
Interest Paid $
Income Taxes Paid $ 0

o

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School is an Arizona not-for-profit corporation organized in 1997.
The Arizona Charter Schools are intended to provide additional academic choices for parents and students
that will improve pupil achievement. Charter school statutes support flexibility and innovation in key areas
of operations and organizational structures, including scheduling, curriculum, and instructional
methodologies.

The School is exempt from Federal and Arizona income taxes on its exempt function income under Section
501 (¢) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The School does not receive any non-exemplt income and is not a
private foundation.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Assets, liabilities, support, revenue and expenses are recognized using the accrual basis of

accounting.

RECOGNITION OF DONOR RESTRICTED SUPPORT
Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor-
restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land, buildings, and improvements with a cost of $3,000 or more and vehicles, furniture and
equipment with both a cost of $300 or more and an estimated life of one year or more are capitalized.
Assets are stated at cost or fair market value at date of gift if contributed. Donations of property and
equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair values. Such donations are reported as
unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to
acquire property and equipmient are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations
regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the School reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The
School reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time.
Depreciation of vehicles, furniture and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets, ranging from 3 to 10 years. Buildings and
improvements are amortized over 15 to 20 years.

DONATIONS
Donated services are recognized only if the services received either create or enhance nonfinancial
assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would
typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. A number of volunteers have made
contributions of their time to the School to help with programs, provide clerical support, and assist
with general maintenance. The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financial
statements since it does not meet the recognition criteria.





CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of
assers and liabilities and disclosure of certain contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH EQUIVALENTS
The School considers all monetary instruments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. As of June 30, 2010, there were no cash equivalents.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The School places its cash with high quality credit institutions. At times, such cash may be in excess
of EDIC insurance limits.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following classes of property and equipment are reflected in the accompanying financial statements at
June 30, 2010:

Land and improvements b 10,074
Leasehold improvements 53,387
Furniture and equipment 142,892
206,353

Less accumulated depreciation (190,774)
$ 15,579

NOTE 4 - OBLIGATIONS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
The School leases facilities under the terms of an operating lease which expires on August 1,2011. The lease
is with a member of the Board of Directors (Note 9). Lease terms are 120 months. Total lease expenses for
the year ended June 30, 2010 were $68,173.

Future minimum lease payments under the operating lease as of June 30, 2010 are:

Year ending June 30:

2011 $ 64,164

2012 10,694

2013 0

2014 0

2015 0

2016 and thereafter 0

Total minimum lease $ 74,858
payments





CHESTER-NEWTON CHARTER AND MONTESSORI SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 5 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School receives a substantial amount of its support from contracts
with and grants from governmental bodies. A significant reduction in the level of support from these sources
may have a material effect on the School’s continuing operations.

NOTE 6 - COMPLIANCE

The School’s compliance with certain laws and regulations is subject to review by the State of Arizona, Office
of the Auditor General, and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools. These reviews could result in a
reduction of state equalization assistance.

NOTE 7 - LITIGATION

The School is contingently liable for claims and judgments resulting from lawsuits incidental to normal
operations. In the opinion of the School’s management, adverse decisions that might result, to the extent not
covered by insurance, would not have a material effect on the financial statements. No provision has been
made in the financial statements for possible losses of this nature.

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description — Effective July 1, 1999, the School contributes to a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Arizona State Retirement System. Benefits are established by state
statute and generally provide retirement, death, long-term disability, survivor, and health insurance premium
benefits. The System is governed by the Arizona State Retirement System Board according to the provisions
of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2. The System issues a comprehensive annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The most recent report may be
obtained by writing the System, 3300 North Central Avenue, PO Box 33910, Phoenix, AZ 85067-3910 or by
calling (602) 240-2000 or (800) 621-3778.

Funding Policy — The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan members’ and the

School’s contribution rate. The School’s contributions to the System for the year ended June 30, 2010 was
$35,784.

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
The following transactions occurred between the School and a member of its Board of Directors:
The School leased facilities from a member of its Board of Directors (Note 4). Rent paid totaled

$68,173 for the year ended June 30, 2010, Commitments under the lease agreement total §74,858
as of June 30, 2010.
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School
Camp Verde, Arizona

[ have audited the financial statements of Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2010, and have issued my report thereon dated October 20, 2010. I conducted my audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing my audit, I considered Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School’s internal control

over financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Chester-Newton
Charter and Montessori School’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, 1 do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
organization’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
organization’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
organization’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the
organization’s internal control.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
1 consider to be a material weakness, as described above.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Chester-Newton Charter and Montessori School’s financial

statements are free of material misstatement, 1 performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed
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no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under United States Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of Directors, Management, federal awarding agencies,
and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

O Y%pPAPC\

Joel D. Huber, CPA, P.C.
October 20, 2010

Joel D. Huber, CPA, P.C.

Certified Public Accountant
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ADM:

REVENUE
State Equalization Assistance
Classroom Site Fund
Instructional Improvement Fund
Federal Funds/Grants
Other State Funds/Grants
Food Service (e.g., NSLP, food sales)
Extracurricular Tax Credits
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Earnings on Investments
Student Activities
Kindergarten Tuition (Applies only to FY10
& FY11 unless expanded by Legislature)
Other
TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES

Instructional
Salaries
Payroll Taxes
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services (Consultants)
Purchased Services (Special Education)
Technology
Textbooks/Curriculum/Library
Instructional Supplies
Professional Development
Travel
Other

Total Instructional

Non-Instructional
Salaries
Payroll Taxes
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Rent/Bond Payment
Repairs and Maintenance
Property, Casualty, Liability Insurance
Interest/Property Taxes
Communications
Furniture and Other Equipment
Note/Loan/Non-Facility Lease Payments
Set aside to upgrade school bus
Audit
Legal
Advertising/Marketing
Travel
Printing and Postage
Supplies
Food Service
Transportation
Student Activities
Fees and Dues
Other Utilities
Total Non-Instructional

TOTAL EXPENSES
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year
ASSUMPTIONS/NOTES

Renewal Budget Plan

Actual
REF; 2010-2011
62.31

A $ 389,354.16
$16,933

$2,280

$109,350

$54,381
$2,004
$680

$0
$33

$8,934
$ 583,949.89

$174,563
B $12,350
$15,567

$5,500
$6,059
$6,058
$5,195
C $10,138
$3,518

$238,948

$152,203

$12,890

B $13,936
$15,179

D $40,727
$5,206

$18,927

$1,918

$3,222

D $3,132
$843

$5,500
$3,535
$1,430

$985
$2,699
$45,643
$11,252
$909
$2,413
$11,641
$354,188

$593,136

E ($9,186)

$34,576
$25,390

Projected Financial Information

2011-2012
78.00

$ 493,523.98

$9,360
$2,280
$91,783

$68,085
$2,200
$500

$50

$4,867
672,648.94

$182,718
$19,990
$16,445

$4,400
$2,000
$9,415
$6,504
$5,500
$1,800

$248,772

$152,762
$12,984
$24,549
$15,179
$44,000
$6,000
$18,927
$450
$2,000
$1,000
$1,400
$20,000
$4,500
$1,500
$1,500

$1,000
$3,000
$62,287
$12,040
$1,000
$2,461
$12,223
$400,762

$649,534

$23,115

$25,390
$48,505

2012-2013
89.00

$574,410
$10,680
$2,280
$96,467

$77,687
$2,400
$500

$50

$5,553
$770,027

$224,200
$22,894
$20,178

$4,850
$5,000
$11,840
$8,500
$16,500
$1,950

$315,912

$167,345
$13,374
$25,942
$15,483
$46,200
$7,000
$19,310
$500
$2,000
$3,200
$1,400
$20,000
$5,000
$1,500
$1,700

$1,200
$3,500
$71,837
$14,020
$1,200
$2,510
$13,834
$438,055

$753,967

$16,060

$48,505
$64,565

A: Equalization is based on ADM 78 for 11/12, ADM 89 for 12/13 and ADM 116 for 13/14 plus a 2% increase on base.
B: Beginning 2011/2012 Health Insurance offered to full-time employees. School paying 3/4 of premium.
C: In 2012/2013 we will send teacher to training in prep for 2013/2014

D: In 13/14 we plan to add a classroom, increased column reflects building costs and equiping costs
E: Due to state fund loss, 10/11 reflects as net asset loss of $9,185. In 11/12 we have reached our projected ADM of 78.

2013-2014
116.00

$678,061
$13,920
$2,280
$98,396

$96,255
$2,600
$500

$50

$7,237
$899,299

$256,626
$24,380
$23,096

$5,200
$6,000
$14,205
$9,672
$7,500
$2,100

$348,779

$172,065
$13,775
$25,386
$15,793
$77,590
$8,500
$23,692
$550
$2,000
$50,000
$1,400

$5,500
$2,000
$2,000

$1,500
$5,000
$89,185
$18,500
$1,800
$3,000
$17,353
$536,589

$885,368

$13,931

$64,565
$78,496
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